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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

J8 7 A B e

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Soundwiill
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 184 to 344, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

s EsTEIR

Valuation of investment properties

REMEME

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the inherent level of complex and subjective
judgements and estimates required in determining the fair values.

The Group’s investment property portfolio comprises retail,
commercial, industrial and residential properties located in Hong
Kong and is stated at fair value of HK$19,808,515,000, accounting
for approximately 89% of the Group’s total assets as at 31 December
2021 with a net fair value loss on investment properties of
HK$1,077,458,000 recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended as
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMEESPEERREFSTENFRX

Qur procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties included:

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and
objectivity of the Valuer and obtaining an
understanding of the Valuer’s scope of work
and their terms of engagement;

° Evaluating the appropriateness of the
Valuer’s valuation approaches to assess if
they meet the requirements of the HKFRSs
and industry norms;
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Key audit matter (Continued)
FHEETEEGR

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

REMEGEGER

The Group’s investment properties are measured using the fair value
model based on a valuation performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer (the “Valuer”). As disclosed in notes 5 and 17 to
the consolidated financial statements, in determining the fair values of
the Group’s completed investment properties, the Valuer has applied
income capitalisation method or direct comparison method, as
appropriate, for respective properties, which involves, inter-alia,
certain estimates, including appropriate capitalisation rates,
reversionary rental value and market transactions of comparable
properties, as appropriate; whereas, in determining the fair values of
the Group’s investment properties under re-development, the Valuer
has applied residual method which is dependent on the estimated
gross development value, estimated cost of development and
allowance of profit that duly reflected developer’s risk associated with
the development.
EEENREVMENBEB IS EREEMGERM(EERM)ET
B E - AR TFERENGE o SR E M mER W EsRI7TAE
B RET EEEEERREDEZATER  HEMDRERS
MEFEANBRAERARAERNMOESEZLEE - R P R(E
PEEBEEERALEER EHEHERITLBRYE LTSRS R
FRABAMEIZETH REE EXBEZEEREVMEZ
NTER  HEMBEARSE  ZAZRBAR G EREE -
il 5T 38 R B AR I 2 7 I Bl B P 7 B 35 FR TE B AR A 2 L B 0 02 N 4B
1 o

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

PSR ETSEIE ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
BHESAPEEFAREASTENSIR (@)

° Challenging the reasonableness and
appropriateness of valuation models applied
based on available market information and
our knowledge of the property industry and
whether the methodologies are consistent
with those used in prior year; and

° Assessing the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the key inputs used in the
valuations, on a sample basis, based on
evidence of comparable market
transactions, existing tenancy profiles and
other publicly available information of the
property industry.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter (Continued)
FHREFEEGE

Assessment of the net realisable values
of properties for sale

HEREMEZTREEE

We identified the assessment of the net realisable values of the
Group’s properties for sale (the “PFS”) as a key audit matter due to
the subjective management judgements and estimates involved in the
determination of the net realisable value (the “NRV”) of the PFS.

As disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had PFS of HK$888,704,000 as at 31 December 2021. The
Group’s assessment of the carrying values of PFS, being the lower of
cost and NRV, takes into account the selling price ultimately
expected to be realised, the estimated costs to completion of the
PFS and costs necessary to make the sale.

The management of the Group determines the estimated selling price
of the PFS with reference to prevailing market data on most recent
sale transactions of similar properties or market valuation reports
available from independent qualified professional valuers, which
takes into account the prevailing real estate market conditions.

Based on the management estimation of the NRV of the PFS and
after taking into consideration the estimated costs to completion of
the PFS and costs necessary to make the sale, no write-down of PFS
was considered necessary for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
BHESHPREFBENSZTENSR(E)

Our procedures in relation to the assessment of
the NRV of the PFS included:

Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and
objectivity of the Valuer and obtaining an
understanding of the Valuer’s scope of work
and their terms of engagement;

Assessing the reasonableness of the
estimated selling price of the PFS estimated
by the management or independent qualified
professional valuers, on a sample basis, by
comparing the estimated selling prices to the
market prices achieved in the same projects
or comparable properties, based on our
knowledge of the Group’s business and the
real estate industry; and

Assessing the reasonableness of the
estimated cost to completion of the PFS
estimated by the management, on a sample
basis, by comparing it to the Group’s
development budget and the actual
development cost of similar properties
recently completed by the Group and by
checking the actual cost incurred to date to
construction contracts and other relevant
documents.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Chau Chi Ka.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
o 98 it B LA 2 T 36

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —E——F+—A=+—HIFFZ

2021 2020
- el 3 —EEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
b & EETR BT
Revenue I 2=
Revenue from goods and services B R RS W = 149,976 211,806
Rental income e WA 418,915 478,484
Total revenue s 6 568,891 690,290
Cost of sales §H & B AR (77,435) (106,784)
Gross profit E 491,456 583,506
Other income, gains and losses B A Wz Rk EE 7 25,234 78,501
Selling expenses HEER (7,017) (10,298)
Administrative expenses THE A (155,957) (154,576)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR 2 WS 38 1,864 7778
Net fair value loss on investment KEWEATE
properties PSRN 17 (1,077,458) (452,999
Reversal of impairment loss/ B E FUR B & B
(impairment loss) on loan BECREEE)
receivables 38(i) 400 (142,423)
Finance costs B & R AR 9 (24,614) (36,885)
Loss before income tax expense BTSRRI E A 10 (746,092) (127,396)
Income tax expense FBHAX 13 (62,008) (57,946)
Loss for the year FREE (808,100) (185,342)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A fy TR AR B At 2 B A 3

For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI F&E

2021 2020
—B=—F T EF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

g3 EETRT BETIT

Other comprehensive income/ Hip2EWN (FX)
(expense), net of tax NpHIEE 14

Items that will not be reclassified to WX T H & T & & # 548

profit or loss: FEz -
Deficit on revaluation of buildings, EFEMHEA -
net of deferred tax HBRIEE T I8 1% = (110)
Change in fair value of financial BATVEGFAREMEE
assets at fair value through other WA (& R FEFTA
comprehensive income HEmEmEmE ALz M
(“FVTOCI") BEEZATEE 559 —
Itemn that may be reclassified K TEAEEAEEN
subsequently to profit or loss: HEE B 7
Exchange gain on translation of MEBINEZ
foreign operations PE 5, I 2 18,922 23,559
Other comprehensive income FRAHMEEBA
for the year, net of tax MR IEE 19,481 23,449

Total comprehensive expense ERNEZEMRAX

for the year (788,619) (161,893)
(Loss)/profit for the year FEAESE R (B518) itk

attributable to: F:

Owners of the Company PN/NSIEZZEDN (807,930) (185,807)

Non-controlling interests JEVE RS (170) 465

(808,100) (185,342)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AR IR R 2 B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 —FE=—#F+=-A =+ —HI FZE

2021 2020
ks etk —T_TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
b it EETR TS T
Total comprehensive FEisERE2E (BX),
(expense)/income for the year (N
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRRIEBA (788,368) (163,959)
Non-controlling interests FEVE R (251) 2,066
(788,619) (161,893)
Loss per share for loss EATIHAANELER
attributable to owners of the BlEZEBKREE
Company for the year 16

Basic HAK HK$ # %% (2.85) 7T HKS$ % % (0.66) 7T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

& BB SIR O %

As at 31 December 2021 R—ZFE——F+—H=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—%f —E-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ool BETIT BT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SEREBE
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investment properties wEYE 17 19,808,515 20,626,625
Property, plant and equipment W - BENMEE 18 135,216 151,450
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAFERFAHEMGZERA
2 BB E 21 28,605 —
Deposits paid for acquisition of WEmZE 2 BENRTS
properties 16,491 9,251
Loan receivables W E R 20 16,552 19,761
Total non-current assets WIEREEE 20,005,379 20,807,087
Current assets RBEE
Properties for sale HEmMHE 19 888,704 940,144
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E At e U FR I8 20 151,757 171,168
Financial assets at fair value through ERFEFAEZE
profit or loss (“FVTPL?) (MR AFEFAERZDZ
WsEE 21 2,815 63,008
Restricted bank deposits PR R 1T 17 3 22 16,110 64,082
Short-term bank deposits HERITER 22 251,181 425,668
Cash and cash equivalents BeEMREEEY 22 885,358 601,806
2,195,925 2,265,876
Assets classified as held for sale NHEAFRECEE 37 75,300 63,787
Total current assets BRBEE 2,271,225 2,329,663
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & EAth B FRIE 23 545,888 619,689
Contract liabilities aHBE 24 47,186 27,682
Lease liabilities HEARE 25 13,729 9,432
Borrowings BE 26 1,396,158 180,605
Provision for income tax TS /& 125,595 127,042
Total current liabilities FES )=V 2,128,556 964,450
Net current assets FRHBHEE 142,669 1,365,213
Total assets less current liabilities @EERAHEE 20,148,048 22,172,300
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SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R B IR L

As at 31 December 2021 R=—FE ——F+—-H=+—H

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

2021 2020
—E-—% —E-FEHE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ool BT T BT
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings BE 26 475,343 1,671,393
Lease liabilities HEAaE 25 15,699 7,981
Deferred tax liabilities BEETRIBAE 27 115,306 105,945
Total non-current liabilities BIEREBBEE 606,348 1,785,319
Net assets FEE 19,541,700 20,386,981
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners EATIHEBA
of the Company FE1LHE ==
Share capital f% < 28 28,331 28,331
Reserves & 29 19,496,893 20,341,923
19,525,224 20,370,254
Non-controlling interests FEEERES 35 16,476 16,727
Total equity HEmEE 19,541,700 20,386,981

The consolidated financial statements on pages 184 to 344 are authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 March
2022 and are signed on behalf by:

FIBAEBMAE Z IR AW HRERRN

—z--

= —

Foo Kam Chu Grace

B

Director

EF

FZATTOARESTSRENR AHATESTA/RSE:

Chan Wai Ling

REF

Director

EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —E——F+—A=+—HIFFZ
2021 2020
—B--F —E-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
b EETRT BT T
Operating activities MEER
Loss before income tax expense BRETBRASRIEE (746,092) (127,396)
Adjustments for: BB EIEEL &
Interest income from financial assets at BATFEGFABZ 2B
FVTPL BEZNBWEA (6,586) (4,602)
Interest income from loan receivables ERERF BUWA (1,058) (19,389)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME MERREZERE
equipment 65 3
Revaluation deficit on property, plant and ME¥  WMERSBZEGEIR
equipment 520 388
Other interest income H b F S WA (7,401) (17,719)
Interest expenses on borrowings EEMEZH 23,756 36,417
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEAGBHNEZH 858 468
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEENE 8,762 6,025
Depreciation of other property, Himz WMEMKETE
plant and equipment 10,574 11,506
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment EWERCRERBERR),
loss on loan receivables WA EE (400) 142,423
Reversal of impairment loss on trade ZSRBFBERERFE
receivables, net i EPE (182) (501)
Net fair value loss on investment properties &Y ¥ N FERIEFHE 17 1,077,458 452,999
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR 2K 38 (1,864) (7.778)
Operating profit before working HBESHEER LR ETN
capital changes 358,410 472,844
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other B R EMERFERLD,
receivables (3gm) 27,160 (73,838)
Decrease in properties for sale HEMERD 60,490 98,224
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank SRR T EZOR D (GE M)
deposits 47,972 (20,203)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 K E fth JE R SRR (67,094) (68,744)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities BHBEEM (R 19,504 (32,404)
Net cash generated from operations XGHBREFE 446,442 375,879
Income tax paid ENEHR (53,124) (111,214)
Net cash generated from operating activities #4852 F5 A i85 & F 58 393,318 264,665
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SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BOBEREE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

2-F-

— = A — AR

ANNUAL

REPORT 2021

2021 2020
—T-—-f§ —TTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
b EETRT BT T
Investing activities BEEH
Purchase of financial assets at FVTOCI BEZATEFAEMER
WAZBBEE (28,046) -
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL BEERATFEFAEBRZ
MG EE (383,968) (244,935)
Proceed from disposal of financial assets HEZRAFEFTAERZZ
at FVTPL M EEMSRE 445,099 285,842
Placement of short-term bank deposits TR BRITER (251,181) (425,668)
Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits REVE BSR 1T ER 425,668 250,000
Repayment from loan receivables EWEFTER 1,843 38,343
Additions to property, plant and equipment R E - ME R & E (3,397) (3,674)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - WMEREE
plant and equipment Fr 1S 38 28 2
Deposits paid for acquisitions of properties W ¥ 2 B354 (7,240) 100
Payment to acquire and construction of WHEREREEME 2R
investment properties (417,887) (2,356)
Net cash inflows from disposal of TEWNBRARZBEER
subsidiaries R 38 160,823 279,514
Interest received from financial assets at BAFEFABZ 2B
FVTPL BEZBHEFE 6,586 4,602
Interest received from loan receivables FEUW B R E U F B 1,058 1,078
Other interest received Hue lF B 7,401 17,719
Deposits received on disposal of HEMBAR 2B WIES
subsidiaries - 9,568
Deposit received on disposal of an LEREME 2D WZS
investment property 1,500 —
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing 1% &% &) (BT ), /2
activities B FEE (41,713) 210,135
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BABERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI F&E

2021 2020

—B--F —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

EBETRT BT

Financing activities A& EED

Repayments of bank loans BERITER (680,497) (692,065)
Bank loans raised EERTER 700,000 600,000
Interest paid on borrowings ENEEFE (23,756) (36,417)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENHEEBEFE (858) (468)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEERE (10,456) (5,309)
Final and special dividends paid ENRBRERRE (56,662) (56,662)
Net cash used in financing activities BE T2 FEE (72,229) (190,921)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents R RIS ZEYEM 279,376 283,879

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1
January

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

R—RA—HBzHER
Re%EY 601,806 307,211

Ex2H2EFH
4,176 10,716

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31
December

R+-—A=+—-HzZHE&R
ReZX@EY 885,358 601,806
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A WA I

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &Z—F ——F+—A=+—HIFZ

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
AATHEANEILER

Capital
Share Share redemption

capital premium reserve
EAEE

% B% 3 itk {8 i
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EETRT EETRT EETRT

As at 1 January 2021 R-—®-—%$—H—H 28,331 690,811 295
Loss for the year FREBHE - - =
Other comprehensive income/(expense) Hip 2@ N (FAX)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: LATEESTEEHEEE:
Change in fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI BAFEAAHEMEERAZHEEE

ZRFEES - - -
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to ATIHEHGBJREENR D ERER

profit or loss:

Exchange gain on translation of foreign operations BREFINEE B R 5 - - -
Total comprehensive income/(expense) FERBEETWRAN (FAX)

for the year - - -

Proposed final dividends for 2021 (note 15(a)) BT —FREAKS

(B E15(a)) _ _ _
Final dividend paid for 2020 (note 15(b)) ERNZZSZTEFRAKRS

(Hff 5£15(0)) - - -

As at 31 December 2021 nW-¥=-—%#+=-HA=+—H 28,331 690,811 205
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AN B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI FE&E

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
FACIHEAANEGER

Investment Proposed Non-

revaluation Retained Exchange Special final controlling Total

reserve profits reserve reserve dividends Total interests equity
BREEM Bk
ik RBEA BE 52 fik 5 5l {7 4 i3-S st FEERER WS BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EETRT EETRT EETRT EETRT EETRT EETRT EETRT EETRT

= 19,610,069 (17,762) 1,848 56,662 20,370,254 16,727 20,386,981
= (807,930) = = = (807,930) (170) (808,100)

559 = = = = 559 = 559
= = 19,003 = = 19,003 (81) 18,922

559 (807,930) 19,003 = = (788,368) (251) (788,619)
= (56,662) = = 56,662 = = =
= = = = (56,662) (56,662) = (56,662)

559 18,745,477 1,241 1,848 56,662 19,525,224 16,476 19,541,700
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Erieg Fob RS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = F=—#F+=-A =+ —HI F&E

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Equity attributable to owners

of the Company

RABHEE AN B ES

Capital
Share Share redemption
capital premium reserve
&g )
[N & 15 % (B e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT B F I BT T
As at 1 January 2020 HR—E-_FEF—H—H 28,331 690,811 295
(Loss)/profit for the year Sk (EEE) - — —
Other comprehensive income/(expense) Hph2mEmkA (%)
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: LTHAB T TEEM Y HIER:
Deficit on revaluation of buildings, BFEHEE  NMRETCHIEBE
net of deferred tax (note 14) (M 5E14) - - -
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to LATIEEEZgeEs 2 ERBER:
profit or loss:
Exchange gain on translation of foreign operations MEEINET 2 B M w - - -
Total comprehensive (expense)/income FRE2THER) WA
for the year — — _
Proposed final dividends for 2020 (note 15(a)) BREITS_TFREARE
(HF 3 15(a)) — - -
Final dividend paid for 2019 (note 15(b)) ERNZZT-AFRERS
(KF 3E15(0)) - - -
As at 31 December 2020 R-F-F|F+=-A=+—H 28,331 690,811 295
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AN B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI F&E

Equity attributable to owners

of the Company
RRBEEANEHER
Asset Proposed Non-
revaluation Retained Exchange Special final controlling Total
reserve profits reserve reserve dividends Total interests equity
BEE EEARE

f#w R & & A bE 5 5Bl 7 s\ Foby FEPE IR A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
ok i BT T ok i BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
110 19,852,538 (39,720) 1,848 56,662 20,590,875 14,661 20,605,536
- (185,807) - - - (185,807) 465 (185,342)
(110) _ _ — — (110) — (110)

- - 21,958 - - 21,958 1,601 23,559
(110) (185,807) 21,958 — — (163,959) 2,066 (161,893)

— (56,662) — — 56,662 — — —
— — — — (56,662) (56,662) — (56,662)

- 19,610,069 (17,762 1,848 56,662 20,370,254 16,727 20,386,981
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SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ A 205 A B ik

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —ZF ——F+—HA=+—HIFFZ

General Information

Soundwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated and domiciled in Bermuda. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) is principally engaged in property
development, property leasing and provision of building
management services.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider the
Company’s ultimate holding party to be a discretionary trust
(the “Trust”), which Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace, the Chairman
of the board of Directors, and her family members (including
Ms. Chan Wai Ling, executive director of the Company) are the
beneficiaries of the Trust.

Application of Amendments to Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
2.1 Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

—iREH
cHGEEERAR(ARF ) ARBERE
HMAYEER 2ER AR ARQE F M
9t = 7 b 1k & Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ° 7~ ‘A &)
BHEEEHERZATERAR ([BRFT])
e

ARREBEXBR/RERR  HNBAR
ZEBEBHNEAMBHRRMEIS - K
REAIREMBAR(AKEENDEZLEY
XER PEHERREHEBTEERS

ARFEE(EE)NRAKDR L BKE
b A— AR (AR HARA
EESTHMS KL T REFKRKE (B
ARFRITH ERBSIME) BRIEELF
A

FEFEEIERT &M B & & FH

(EFEMBREER)

21 RAFEEHEHZEETER
Bt %5 4R & 2 Al
REFE  ARBRUEAMBHRE
BEEEAE =% A A%
218 BAth 2 2 BT3RS
EEEHALE(EAGHTAE)
BN EET BB RERA

BRAVBRELENE —FT-NATE
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M HE
+BE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SO A B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI F&E

2. Application of Amendments to Hong Kong 2.

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

2.1 Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)
In addition, the Group applied the agenda decisions of
the IFRS Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of
the International Accounting Standards Board issued in
June 2021 which clarified the costs an entity should
include as “estimated costs necessary to make the sale”
when determining the net realisable value of inventories.

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Impacts on application of the agenda decision of
the Committee — Cost necessary to sell
inventories (HKAS 2 “Inventories”)

In June 2021, the Committee, through its agenda
decision, clarified the costs an entity should include as
“estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when
determining the net realisable value of inventories. In
particular, whether such costs should be limited to those
that are incremental to the sale. The Committee
concluded that the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale should not be limited to those that are
incremental but should also include costs that an entity
must incur to sell its inventories including those that are
not incremental to a particular sale.

The Group’s accounting policy prior to the Committee’s
agenda decision was to determine the net realisable
value of inventories taking into consideration incremental
costs only. Upon application of the Committee’s agenda
decision, the Group changed its accounting policy to
determine the net realisable value of properties for sale
taking into consideration both incremental costs and
other cost necessary to sell inventories (including but no
limited to the sales commission expenses). The new
accounting policy has been applied retrospectively.

FEREEITEEMBREEL
(EEMBREERDER)

21

HQZEEF‘?HUE;&Z%“ EHE
B R #ERI (8

BEAN - $%.E%%.¢ FHAERI IR
$A§$T.5§Eﬁﬁ$&i’&ﬁuuﬁﬁiﬁ
g(ZEBg)R_T—F X A%ELD
LEBIBRE  BREREBRAEEES
B2 FERENAELHEE Y
B2 ET AN 2 A o

BRI XA oh - MAFE R RRER]
BEMBRELENHAERELREER
BEFENHBRRRRERER,RZ
EHRAMBREMENPESTRIL
BEELBEARE -

ERZESEHERET - HEFE
BEREX(FEEEER 29 F
B)ZRE
RZZE_—F A ZESRBEHEZ
Brr EIERTECFENEH
FERENABMELEE BB ZHA
BAIZRA  EERZEXNARSE
f@W%E%EZW$ LESRELE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 —FE=—#F+=-A =+ —HI FZE

2. Application of Amendments to Hong Kong 2.

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The application of the Committee’s agenda decision has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions

and performance.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments®
Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021'

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to
HK Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction®

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling a
Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
20207

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI F&E

2. Application of Amendments to Hong Kong 2.
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)
2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)
i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

Except for the amendments to HKAS mentioned below,
the Directors anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses
to disclose immaterial accounting policy information,
such information must not obscure material accounting
policy information.
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SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B0 S A B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = F=—#F+=-A =+ —HI F&E

2. Application of Amendments to Hong Kong 2.

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”
(Continued)
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step
materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures and
1o judge whether information about an accounting policy
is material to its financial statements. Guidance and
examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group but may affect the disclosures
of the Group’s significant accounting policies. The
impacts of application, if any, will be disclosed in the
Group’s future consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 “Definition of Accounting
Estimates”

The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to be
measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require
such items to be measured at monetary amounts that
cannot be observed directly and must instead be
estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by
the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates
involves the use of judgements or assumptions based on
the latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting
estimates in HKAS 8 is retained with additional
Clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SO A B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI F&E

3. Basis of Preparation

3.1

3.2

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements on pages 184 to
344 have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments, investment properties and
buildings which are measured at fair values or revalued
amounts at the end of each reporting period as set out in
the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B0 S A B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = F=—#F+=-A =+ —HI F&E

3. Basis of Preparation (Continued) 3. REEESE)
3.2 Basis of Measurement (Continued) 3.2 FEEEEH)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use. Fair
value under HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”
(“HKFRS 13”) is an exit price regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the
results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2 —F —

3. Basis of Preparation (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Basis of Measurement (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The significant accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised in note 4.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are
based on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 5.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.
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SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SO A B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = F=—#F+=-A =+ —HI F&E

4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

44

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI F&E

4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

44

4.2

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company. Al
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs).

Joint Arrangements

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = F=—#F+=-A =+ —HI F&E

4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.2 Joint Arrangements (Continued)
Interests in joint operations (Continued)

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular

assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or
contribution of assets), the Group is considered to be
conducting the transaction with the other parties to the
joint operation, and gains and losses resulting from the
transactions are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of other parties’ interests in

the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a
purchase of assets), the Group does not recognise its
share of the gains and losses until it resells those assets

to a third party.

4.3 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of

classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale
when the criteria described above are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in

the relevant subsidiary after the sale.

4.2

4.3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI F&E

4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.3

4.4

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)
Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal,
except for financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) and investment
properties which continue to be measured in
accordance with the accounting policies as set out in
respective sections.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation (including
properties under construction or held for future
development for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude any
prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of the investment properties under construction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = F=—#F+=-A =+ —HI F&E

4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.4

4.5

Investment Properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the properties) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes.

Buildings held for own use are stated at revalued
amount, being their fair value at the date of the
revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial
recognition. To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold
land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position except for
those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

4.
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ERTBREE (&)

4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4.

Policies (Continued)

4.5 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 45 Y%  -BERREG(E)

Any revaluation increase arising from revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in asset
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognise in profit or loss, in which case the increase is
credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds
the balance, if any, on the asset revaluation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the
attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to retained
profits.

Other items of property, plant and equipment, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing and capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences wWhen the assets are ready for their intended
use. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.5 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or
valuation of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.6

Impairment of Other Non-Financial Assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of the non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of non-financial assets are
estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = F=—#F+=-A =+ —HI F&E

4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.6

Impairment of Other Non-Financial Assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that standard.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.6

4.7

Impairment of Other Non-Financial Assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or
a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase
under that standard.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics
are accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group
reasonably expects that the effects on the consolidated
financial statements would not differ materially from
individual leases within the portfolio.

4. FEEHBERMEER)

4.6

4.7

Hiv M B EERBIEGE)

R EEEERRD  ZEE R
CEABUN-AREELB)Z
FREEEINEEAIRE SRR 2 BFT
st MEATIE I Z BREE S B %
BEGHSELEUN—ERSE
EBM)REEFEY BEZRERS
ERREEE REE - RERIE
BOEERERER  RIFEREE
REZ-—RENZSEEHESRIE &
BEIERT BB B 1B B Rl % A
BEEGHEBELRRE -

HE

HEZZE#

AR —BREHAGEHEENEE
Rz ENEENBRRREZAL -
YERSBE-EEE -

HRVITEAEEM B REERF16
- E YA HINVEICHEE 3 a-g
EEZAK  AEBERFIL - &5
BB RH (@A) RIFBEM B R
SRANFIBRE N2 ERFBHENES
BRHEEHE - RIFEHNZERR
RIFERBMAE - TAITEEHT
HEEAK -

ERERBERBN  EAKEEER
PHGEEMBREARITEITSEA
BARAZERNEELRERERK - &
BEUSH HERSRESEEA
BE o

213



214

SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B0 S A B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = F=—#F+=-A =+ —HI F&E

4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)
Policies (Continued)

4.7 Leases (Continued) 4.7 HE(E)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and
instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of car parks and office premises
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)

Policies (Continued)
4.7 Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property,
plant and equipment”, the same line item within which
the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)

Policies (Continued)

4.7 Leases (Continued) 47 HMEE)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever the lease term has changed or there is
a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EESFBRBEE)

Policies (Continued)
4.7 Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties
measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers” (“HKFRS 15”) to
allocate consideration in a contract to lease and non-
lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone selling prices.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.7

4.8

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were
not part of the original terms and conditions are
accounted for as lease modifications, including lease
incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of
rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EESFBRBEE)

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

4.8 MBEIAEE)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

4.8.1 Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. B BRI E ()

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)

4.8 BMBIR(E)
481 B EE (&)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve;
and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained
profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the other income, gains
and losses line item in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 —FE=—#F+=-A =+ —HI FZE

4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period, with any
fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the “other
income, gains and losses” line item.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI F&E
4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

4.8 MBEIAE)

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on
financial assets (including trade and other
receivables, loan receivables, restricted bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents) and financial guarantee
contracts which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually for each debtor.

4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued) 4.8.1 AL E ()
Impairment of financial assets 5 EEC B E
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = F=—#F+=-A =+ —HI F&E

4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or
risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI F&E

4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(0

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; or

° an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(0

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a
low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when it
has an internal or external credit rating of
“investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(0

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
For financial guarantee contracts, the date
that the Group becomes a party to the
irrevocable commitment is considered to be
the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition of a financial guarantee
contract, the Group considers the changes
in the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

)

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the
following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI F&E

4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two
years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised
in profit or loss.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

\)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
and forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. For a
lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the
cash flows used in measuring the lease
receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

For a financial guarantee contract, the
Group is required to make payments only in
the event of a default by the debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the ECL is
the present value of the expected payments
to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that
it incurs less any amounts that the Group
expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2 —F —

4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

\)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for
which the effective interest rate cannot be
determined, the Group will apply a discount
rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and
the risks that are specific to the cash flows
but only if, and to the extent that, the risks
are taken into account by adjusting the
discount rate instead of adjusting the cash
shortfalls being discounted.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of
the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9;
and the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, cumulative amount of
income recognised over the guarantee
period.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(vy  Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)
The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of
trade receivables, loan receivables and
financial guarantee contracts where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. ELEREIE )

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)

4.8 MBI R(E)
4.8.1 I HEZE(E)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is not reclassified to
profit or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

4.8.2 Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.2 Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are
measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and

° the amount initially recognised less, where

appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2 —F —

4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.9

410

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Properties for sale are classified as current assets.
Except for the leasehold land element which is
measured at cost model in accordance with the
accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties for
sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a specific identification
basis including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated
cost to completion and costs necessary to make the
sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make the sale.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;
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A SO A B
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.10 Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations (i.e. providing financial guarantee to banks
with respect to mortgage loans procured by the
purchasers of the Group’s properties in the contracts on
sales of properties), the Group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or
service underlying each performance obligation is
determined at contract inception. It represents the price
at which the Group would sell a promised good or
service separately to a customer. If a stand-alone selling
price is not directly observable, the Group estimates it
using appropriate techniques such that the transaction
price ultimately allocated to any performance obligation
reflects the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to the customer.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EESFBRBEE)

Policies (Continued)
4.10 Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the
Group with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer. In those
circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. A significant financing component
may exist regardless of whether the promise of financing
is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the
payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any significant
financing component.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.10 Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a
customer that it would not have incurred if the contract
had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (i.e. sales
commissions in relation to the sales of properties) as an
asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on
a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the
assets relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or
loss within one year.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI F&E

ERTBREE (&)

4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4.

Policies (Continued)

4.11 Foreign Currency 411 I8

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which
case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

412

413

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable. Such grants are presented under
“other income”.
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ERTBREE (&)

4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4.
Policies (Continued)

4.14 Taxation 414 18

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are
unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of income tax
expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences at
the reporting date between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and their corresponding tax bases used in
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.14 Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries and interests in joint operation, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

4.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EESFBRBEE)
Policies (Continued)

4.14 Taxation (Continued) 414 BIE(E)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e.
based on the expected manner as to how the properties
will be recovered).

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable
to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a
net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets
over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease
liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

4.14 Taxation (Continued)
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,
(@  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set

off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

4.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.15 Employee Benefits

(i)

(ii)

Defined contribution retirement plans
Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions. The
Group’s obligations under these plans are limited
to the fixed percentage contributions payable.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such
as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another
HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the
cost of an asset.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting
Policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

(i)  Deferred tax arising from fair value changes in

investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties, the Directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted.

5.
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18 18 & A 1 HEED -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2 —F —

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(i)

Estimated fair value of investment properties and
revalued amount of buildings

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair
value and buildings are stated at revalued amount based
on the valuation performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer. In determining the fair value/revalued
amount, the valuer has based its valuation on income
capitalisation approach or direct comparison or the
residual method, as appropriate for respective
investment properties, and valuation on net replacement
cost method for buildings, which involves certain
estimates, including comparable market transactions,
appropriate capitalisation rates and reversionary rental
value, estimated gross development value, estimated
cost of development and allowance of profit that duly
reflected developer’s risk associated with the
development, as appropriate. The determination of the
fair value involves certain assumptions of market
conditions which are set out in notes 17 and 18. In
relying on the valuation report, management has
exercised their judgement and is satisfied that the
methods of valuation adopted are appropriate for the
relevant property and reflective of current market
conditions. Changes to these assumptions, including the
potential risk of any market violation, policy, social
changes or other unexpected incidents as a result of
change in macroeconomic environment, or other
unexpected incidents would result in changes in the fair
values of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. As at 31 December
2021, the fair value of Group’s investment properties and
revalued amount of buildings were approximately
HK$19,808,515,000 and HK$34,978,000 (2020:
HK$20,626,625,000 and HK$36,378,000), respectively.

5.

gE:

A SO A B

—F+ A=+ —HIFE

¥ % {5 51 1~ & 5 E

RZEERRF(E)

P EEEARZ EERIE
ATRRBERRBEAARARZEERER
A THERZZEMEERIER  MAR

EAER

R ER T —HRFEAZEERA

BEREEAFLHEANAE -

()

REYEZEHA LN FEREFZE
-t
REBZIREMEUATEYE - 2
FIRBIA é*%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁZﬁ
BEUNEF-SEIE RETQAFES
EHEEE HEMBRSIREDE
BANBRERKRAERNLEREE
LEBUESFISRE BHMERELE - METF
Wﬁ%iﬁ&$%ﬁﬁ ERSRE
RO BEMERS BEERELE
RIEHHEE - A BEAE - HFrE
BEAREZARBEREEERIEE
TR 2 BB 2 s I H (R ERIBR
ME)Z2H Thst e A FENETE S
K sE17RASET & M 5 AR S T
fRA% - MIRFBEERER EEED
EREAE - WEHMEARNGEETS
EE A ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬁ%o%
ERJOE(L > BETATIHERD
%EHM R EIR G B L E A
REEHEFMBOR LB LR E
IR EM - B ERAEEIEEY
E¥NATEREEL  THEAER
FEMERMBRARPRENIBEZES T
Lﬁﬁ%ﬁ%°ﬂf§:—¢+fﬂ
=t+—H AEEZEREMEIATF
BEREFIEGHSEINRBHNBE
19,808,515,0007T & /% #34,978,0007C
— T =T F: B #20,626,625,0007T
X 7% #36,378,0007T) °
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5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

(ii)

Net realisable values of properties for sale
Management determines the net realisable values of
properties for sale based on the Group’s assessment of
the selling price ultimately expected to be realised less all
estimated cost to completion and cost necessary to
make the sale. The estimated selling price of such
properties are determined by the management with
reference to prevailing market data such as most recent
sale transactions of similar properties or market valuation
reports available from independent qualified professional
valuers. Such valuations are made based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties and
might materially differ from the actual result. In making
the judgement, reasonable consideration has been given
to the underlying assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the reporting date. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market data
and actual transactions in the market. As at 31
December 2021, the carrying amount of properties for
sale was approximately HK$888,704,000 (2020:
approximately HK$940,144,000).

5.
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PSR E T HE R AT A iEEH
RZEEXREER)

st AP EEERZ EERIE(E)

(ii)

TFEYEZTEHEFE
EREERBEASEBEHSRBAHERE
BIEL 2 5E - REFBMHATEIA
ARETHENREZRA  EEFE
MEZAIEIREE - EREET%RS
MHEZEFTEER  22ZRUME
ZERIHEERGRNB LA BERFEM
BERMRERE TS HEERESHTT
BEE  c BEMENEAE T THEE
EEFTR 2 BRa&MmETT - WAL E
BERBEARER - IEDH B
EREDAEEREIERNREH
BRI 2R e 2 AR o 1t
EHFeTcHRERMBRIELT
BEZEBRRIELER - RZT=—
F+-_A=1+—8 HEVEZE®R
B A #) 75 %888,704,0007t (Z B =&
F : 4975 %5940,144,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI F&E

6. Wiz
An analysis of the Group’s revenue from its principal activities AEB 2 EEBEB 2 W R EMKA DT
and other income is as follows: NS
i)  Disaggregation of Revenue and Reconciliation i) WERER RS E R
to Segment Revenue
2021 2020
—B-—F —E_FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Revenue from contracts with REFEMBRE
customers under HKFRS 15 ERHHE157KBER
ezl
Property development* YMIKER
— Sales of completed properties —BEKTEME
for sale HE 127,048 189,678
Building management and EFEEREMRRE
other services*
— Property repairs and maintenance — MEHBERRE
service income iz 7 W A 8,381 7,023
— Building management service — BFERRS
income WA 14,547 15,105
Revenue from contracts with customers 18 15 & i B1 75 3R &5 % 81|
under HKFRS 15 FISRRABEF AL
pdl & 149,976 211,806
Property leasing* MEHE
— Rental and signage rental income — e RESEM
HEWA 418,915 478,484
Total revenue Uy 25 568,891 690,290
* The segment names are defined in the section “Segment i DEEBERRMIABHEER]—
information” in note 8. £}
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6. Revenue (Continued) 6.
i) Disaggregation of Revenue and Reconciliation
to Segment Revenue (Continued)

W 2= (48)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

) W B R R 53 3 M A E AR (4R)

Building
management
Property and other
development services
For the year ended 31 December 2021 segment segment Total
EBFEER
BE-B-_—+-RA=+—HiL&EE VMERRPE H@RBESE fa st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
EETRT EETRT EETRT
Geographical markets i [& T 15
The Mainland China* R A b 127,048 = 127,048
Hong Kong o = 22,928 22,928
127,048 22,928 149,976
Timing of recognition R E
A point in time B ) G 127,048 - 127,048
Over time FERS RS - 22,928 22,928
127,048 22,928 149,976
. For reporting purpose, the Mainland China excludes Hong * EWMS - FEABTEEERTE
Kong, Taiwan and Macau B K IEM
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

6. Revenue (Continued)
i) Disaggregation of Revenue and Reconciliation
to Segment Revenue (Continued)

W 2= (48)

) WrE B R R 53 M A E AR (4R)

Building
management
Property and other
development services
For the year ended 31 December 2020 segment segment Total
BFERR
HE-_Z-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLLEFE MEZRRSE HURBHE #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT
Geographical markets i [E 15
The Mainland China* A A 119,298 - 119,298
Hong Kong B 70,380 22,128 92,508
189,678 22,128 211,806
Timing of recognition T 5% B [
A point in time I A 2 189,678 — 189,678
Over time & 5 R HE 75 — 22,128 22,128
189,678 22,128 211,806

*

For reporting purpose, the Mainland China excludes Hong
Kong, Taiwan and Macau

* HRERME - PEAMTIEERE -

I\ it

B8 FORPI
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6.

Revenue (Continued)

i)

Performance Obligation for Contract with
Customers

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the
respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the customers which is a point in time when
customers have the ability to direct the use of the
properties and obtain substantially all benefits of the
properties. Deposits received from customers prior to
meeting the aforementioned revenue recognition criteria
are regarded as the contract liabilities and included in
current liabilities as pre-sale proceeds received on sales
of properties in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group considers that the pre-sale proceeds
received on sales of properties do not contain significant
financing component as the contracts where the period
between payment and transfer of the associated
properties is less than one year, the Group applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price
for any significant financing component.

For the contracts that contain the performance
obligation of providing financial guarantee to banks with
respect to mortgage loans procured by the purchasers
of the Group’s properties in the contracts on sales of
properties, the Group should allocate the transaction
price to the performance obligations between the sales
of properties and provision of financial guarantee on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. The Group
considers that the impact in the allocation of provision of
financial guarantee on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis is insignificant during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 and thus all the revenue
recognised from the contracts with customers on sales
of properties is then allocated to the revenue from sales
of completed properties for sale.

6. U
ii)
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i (48)

BEREHMZEHNEE

RS F

VES RN €U R E S oA
REFREEER - FNEFALE

EEVMERAEZLMESYDEBAILD
M2 B o FEED bl i s R R
HRIRAEPERB ZATERIEEHA
B WHEEARBBRARTARDE
B FREEMFERIZAERFR
15 o

AEERR  HREHRZARERE
ERAMERE IR —F - AHE
YRV 2 FFERFHRIBNSERNR
By MASBECEAATZRE
& TRAEMERREX D AER
5B -

REEBENET 2N EIEYEH
EANTRAKENEERERZIR
BEFMARTREMFERNE
AEBERIZCALEBLEES WX
HERMBRREBIRADERSE
o AKBRE BE_T_—FK
—EEF+A=+—HILEFER
HHBYEENEVBERBRELZ
FEWAER Fit - REEWEM
BRZMBTF ARG HiREn
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6. Revenue (Continued)

i)

i)

Performance Obligation for Contract with
Customers (Continued)

Property repairs and maintenance service income/
Building management service income

Revenue from provision of property repairs and
maintenance service and provision of building
management service are recognised over time as the
customers simultaneously receive and consume the
benefits provided by the Group when the Group renders
the service.

Transaction Price Allocated to the Remaining
Performance Obligation for Contracts with
Customers

Contracts for building management services are typically
have one to five years non-cancellable term under which
the Group bills a fixed amount for a month. The Group
elected to apply the practical expedient by recognising
revenue in the amount to which the Group has right to
invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

All other contracts with customers are for periods of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts
is not disclosed.

6. W
ii)

i)

= (48)

BEFAHZENEREE@&

HEEIERRERFBRA
BFEZREBRA

Y R BB R R & IR A S g i
BTFEERG A TIRER HRHER
R 22 P 7 5 [ 2 A R 7% B [ B
WE R FERARBIR M 2 M e

SEEEFRSHZHEBRBHERE
ZXHEE

BFEERGEN—REFE—ZE1F
TR R Bt - AREEE
BEAKDEESHE - AEECEE
ERAITTZREZR  RASEB#E
MARRZCBEER KD - HUE
B REERESSEA AR - L&
BEIREZFRBTANZIRSE
1% o

FEEMEP AN R —FHIAT -
INE B B RS &R BT A
A EBRBESREXFIRETALD
ZRPBIE e
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7. Other Income, Gains and Losses 7. HWA KWEREIE
2021 2020
—g-—-f§ —E_FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T Vok e
7a. Other income 7a. Hiblgr A
Interest income from financial assets at BEAFEFABERZZ
FVTPL VEEZFBERA 6,586 4,602
Interest income from loan receivables FEURCE A B A 1,058 19,389
Other interest income EH 5 B A 7,401 17,719
Government grants (note) B AT 47 Bh (B 7%) 3,091 8,906
Miscellaneous income 1B A 6,981 27,387
25,117 78,003
7b. Other gains and losses 7b. Hib Wiz R 8
Reversal of impairment loss on trade B 5 W IEREEE
receivables, net i JEpEE ] 182 501
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - HERRK
equipment &5 18 (65) 3)
117 498
Total income, gains and losses WA W Zs RS HE 458 25,234 78,501
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised Wak: REBEEZT—F+-A=+—HLFE"

government grants of HK$3,091,000 (2020: HK$8,906,000) in
respect of Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong
Kong government.

AEERBEBBFRENMRHM E T8I
SR B 78 3,001,000 (ZE T4 ¢

7 #8,906,0007T) °
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Segment Information

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors of the Company
for their decisions about resource allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the performance
of those components. The business components in the internal
financial information reported to the executive directors of the
Company are determined following the Group’s major business
lines.

The Group has identified the following operating and
reportable segments:

Development of residential,
commercial and industrial
properties

Property
development

Property leasing Property rental including signage
rental and rental under mini-

storage operation

Building Provision of building
management management, property repairs
and other and maintenance services
services

Each of these operating and reportable segments is managed
separately as each of the business lines requires different
resources as well as operating approaches.

Also, the Group engaged in properties assembly and sales of
properties business. There is no project under property
assembly business in both years. Thus, this is not constitute a
reportable segment during both years.

AEERBAANRBANTEETEHNE2RZ
NBHBEHBRELEDBREHIE
BER ATEEREZEFERARAEAKHE
EXBAXBD 2 E RN B LR % FHE
BN ZRE - AARBRITERTZHR
NEH I E R 2 XA O IRBEALE
BEEXHRET -

AEEEHA NI EERAT2HmNE:

Y EER BREZ BER
IEME

MEBRE O MEBERRESNK
MERKFEEHT
ZHE

BTFEEK RHEEFER ME

H Al AR 75 HEERRE RS
EEE@%%%’%?%%TH&E&%«%Fﬁ
BEEERAIZHBOBORAERE o

SO AEERENEEHRDERHEER
B RMEFEALEELADESHER
HA - At RNMEFEALTEXA 2R

D o
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Segment Information (Continued)
These operating and reportable segments are monitored and
strategic decisions are made on the basis of segment

operating results.

8.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

TEEF(R)
BB RA2 WA 2 B R RORR 2 I
HTERDEREEE -

Segment Revenue and Results STEEERES
Building management and
Property development Property leasing other services Segment total
MEER HEHEE EBFrEBREMRE FE@ET
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
bt B T -TF kel T T4 kel —T-TF febombl il T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT PR EETT ELEwA EETn ERCLSwAl EETT ok Ew
Revenue W 25
External customers SMREP 127,048 189,678 418,915 478,484 22,928 22,128 568,891 690,290
Inter-segments (note) &R () - - - 108 2,787 1,334 2,787 1,442
Segment revenue PERE 127,048 189,678 418,915 478,592 25,715 23,462 571,678 691,732
Segment profits S 38,359 58,229 353,731 435,829 19,717 23675 411,807 517,733
Certain other income, gains ETFEMBA -
and losses REE 7,591 33,435
Certain administrative expenses ETIHER (65,682) (54,035)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZ
L6 1,864 7,778
Net fair value loss on BREMENTERER
investment properties FE (1,077,458) (452,999)
Reversal of impairment loss EREFREES
(impairment loss) on loan BE(AEER)
receivables 400 (142,423
Finance costs BEKAR (24,614) (36,885)
Loss before income tax expense BEEHRAIAER (746,092) (127,396)
Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at mutual agreed terms. MisE: B0 BEHEEREERE 2 BKRINE -

The operating and reportable segment results exclude finance
costs, net fair value loss on investment properties, reversal of
impairment loss (impairment loss) on loan receivables, gain on
disposal of subsidiaries, certain other income, gains and
losses, certain administrative expenses and income tax

expense.

BE N2

pa

NREETBRBERAS

REMEANFEBRFE BEEFRE
ERBOCRERSE) LERBARZK
@ ATEMEA kamkEE - FTT
BERKAEHRAX -
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8. Segment Information (Continued) 8.

SEEHE)

Segment Assets and Liabilities HESERERE
Building management and
Property development Property leasing other services Segment total
MEER MEHE BFEBRAMRE SE@G

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

btk —T-TF Ebiebg l —T-TF Embtcebdl T TF Emtiebll —T-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT LA AR TT PRSI AN TT R AT kS

Segment assets PEBE 1,274,779 1,260,121 20,072,949 20,912,125 23,571 28,250 21,371,299 22,200,496
Certain property, plant and ET0% BERR

equipment 5,264 1,671

Financial assets at FVTOCI BATEHA
Hi2EBA

LHBEE 28,605 -

Short-term bank deposits BBETER 251,181 425,668

Certain cash and cash equivalents %= THERELZEY 544,955 445,128

Assets classified as heldforsale S EAGECEE 75,300 63,787

Total assets BEAE 22,276,604  23136,750

Segment liabilities NEEE 317,360 363,230 241,404 232,011 7,531 8,107 566,295 603,348

Certain other payables ETEMERRE 56,207 61,436

Borrowings HE 1,871,501 1,851,998

Provision for income tax FrEHER 125,595 127,042

Deferred tax liabilities EEREAE 115,306 105,945

Total liabilities BEEE 2,734,904 2,749,769

Segment assets include all assets other than certain property,
plant and equipment, financial assets at FVTOCI, short-term
bank deposits, certain cash and cash equivalents and assets

classified as held for sale.

THREEBEMEEE ETEREETY
X BEERE BAFESARMCEE
WAZHMBEE  RBERTER 5TH

ERREEBYNANRIBERFEZEE -

Segment liabilities comprise all liabilities other than certain SEABEEMEARE  ETEEETH

other payables, provision for income tax, deferred tax liabilities

and borrowings.

REE -

N SKIR - FISHEE  BETCHEARE
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Segment Information (Continued)

Other Segment Information

SADRRHHE
ZRE:

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit:

Interest income from financial assets A FE AR Z
at FVTPL SREEZHSMA

Interest income from loan W E A SHA
receivables

Other interest income EFBRA

Depreciation of right-of use assets ¥ BEEEHT &

Depreciation of other property, plant £ #1% + BE &
and equipment HENE

Reversal of impairment loss EHRAFERE
(impairment loss) on trade BRER(IE
receivables, net EBR)EE

Reversal of impairment loss ERERFESE
(impairment loss) on loan AE(RESR)
receivables

Amounts included in the FAREEEGE
measure of segment assets: 23 :

Addtions to non-current segment £ AR
assets during the year FRBABEE

Geographical Information

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its non-
current assets (other than financial instruments) are divided into
the following geographical areas:

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

8. HEEAMGE)

HitSFEH

Building management and

Property development Property leasing other services Segment total
HEER NEHE BPEERAMBRE HES

2020 2021 2020 2020 2020
S F - e “ZoE%E it St 33
HK$'000 [GICSON HKS'000 JNGC{VOM HKS'000 EEGICIVONN HK$'000 EEGIEXN0)
E¥Tn EELSvA E¥Tn EELSPAN E¥Tn LSO EETT LY
6,586 4,602 - - - - 6,586 4,602
1,058 1,078 - - - - 1,058 1,078
426 919 10 29 - 188 436 1,136
(367) (465) (8,289) (5,454) (106) (106) (8,762) (6,025)
14)] (103) (10497 (1273 - - (10568 (1,376)
- - 182 505 - 4) 182 501
890 2 442,865 17,479 - - 443,755 17,481

Revenue from
external customers

Unallocated Total
b3k @zt
2021 2020 2021 2020
“¥o-F i —F - et
HKS'000 TN HKS'000 [0l
L EETT EELEIA EETT
- - 6,586 4,602
- 18,311 1,058 19,389
6,965 16,583 7,401 17719
- - (8,762) (6,025)
) (130)  (10,574)  (1150)
- - 182 501
400 (142,423) 400 (142,423)
- - 443,755 17481

AEBEZINREFP s R EIFREE E (B
BTARRIN D AT R :

Non-current assets

IhREF U R EREEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
— T —F Embambc T —F Bkl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT T BETR BT T

Principal markets EEWH

— Hong Kong (domicile) — &5 (GEfb) 441,843 570,992 19,946,155 20,773,055
— the Mainland China — B A 127,048 119,298 14,067 14,271
568,891 690,290 19,960,222 20,787,326
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8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. HEEHGE)
The geographical location of customers is based on the BEEZIBMEDERZN REER
location at which the goods/services were delivered/rendered. R 2HBET - ERBEEZHED R
The geographical location of non-current assets is based on DEREEZEREM -
the physical location of the assets.
Information about Major Customer FHRAEXEERZEH
Revenue from customer of the corresponding years AT AEBFERERAEEETEERI0%
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as Bl m s BE 7 W
follows:
Year ended
BEUTEHILEEE
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—B-—F —T-FTF
+=ZA=+—H Rapy:Eakl=
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Customer A (Note) EPA )
— Property leasing —WEHEE 60,300 N/A “~ 3 FR
Note: Revenue from Customer A did not exceed 10% of total revenue Ma: RBE_Z_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
during the year ended 31 December 2020. RERPAR M &= T BB 2K = 1910% o
9. Finance Costs 9. BIERE
2021 2020
—B-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Interest expenses on: UTEBEZABXH
Borrowings BE 23,756 36,417
Lease liabilities HEAE 858 468

24,614 36,885
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10.

Loss before Income Tax Expense
Loss before income tax expense is arrived at after charging/

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

10. RFIRHFAXZAEGE
RS BEXABAR MG GIA) T3

(crediting): BIA
2021 2020
—Eg-—F TECETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EBETR BT
Auditor’'s remuneration % 2R BN & 3,084 3,062
Cost of completed properties for sale MRAEAI ZEEREE
recognised as expenses (note) Y 2 RS (M 5F) 69,204 100,317
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE M8
(note 18) 8,762 6,025
Depreciation of other property, plantand ~ E#¥%¥ - BELZETE
equipment (note 18) (MF3E18) 10,574 11,506
Employee compensation expense EERMAL (BIEESHE
(including Directors’ remuneration and K TE B84 5RO A (Bt 5E12)
defined contribution cost) (note 12) 128,540 124,858
Rentals in respect of short-term leases EHHEHEREKEEHEE 2
and low-valued leases He 794 467
Revaluation deficit on property, plant and %1% - BMEN &K E 2 &t
equipment i} 520 388
Gross rental income from investment KEMHEHS WAL
properties (418,915) (478,484)
Less: Direct operating expense arising BEERSWAZERE
from investment properties that MEMEEZEE
generated rental income wEL 19,953 23,716
Less: Direct operating expense arising B AEERSWAZERE
from investment properties that MEREE 2B%
did not generate rental income LT 93 43
(398,869) (454,725)
Note: The amount included a reversal of the accruals on construction Wa: ZeEeEaE-_2-—F+=-A=+—H

works of HK$7,256,000 (2020: nil) in respect of the completed
properties for sale sold during the year upon the final payment
agreed with the respective suppliers during the year ended 31
December 2021.

FTFEESERINESHERRE 2 XE
% BRENHECEXSEMEMBLER
THREEAT BB 7,256,0007T (T T4 ¢
) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T A B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI F&E

1. EERSREEREZME

11. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments

(a) Directors’ Emoluments (@ EEM£
The emoluments paid or payable to the Directors were BENENEEMSOT:
as follows:
Retirement
Performance benefits
Salaries and related scheme
Fee allowances bonuses  contributions Total
BHET
e HEREM REAMTL SRR gt
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
EETR BETRT EETRT EETR BETT
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-F--%
+ZRA=+—-HL%E
Executive directors WTES
Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace Be%at 120 5,652 5,601 18 11,391
Ms. Chan Wai Ling REZE 120 4,320 5,322 18 9,780
Mr. Chan Hing Tat (appointed on 14 April 2021 BEELE
(R=Z=—FWA+MA
BZA) 86 3,401 5,169 18 8,674
Mr. Tse Wai Hang SEELE 120 2,100 175 18 2,413
Independent non-executive directors BURTES
Mr. Chan Kai Nang BB g 178 - - - 178
Mr. Pao Ping Wing AR L E 168 - - - 168
Mr. Ng Chi Keung REBREE 177 - - - 177
969 15,473 16,267 72 32,781
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-S-®E
+ZRA=+—-HL%E
Executive directors WTEE
Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace ekt 120 5,652 7,649 18 13,439
Ms. Chan Wai Ling REZ)NE 120 4,320 6,849 18 11,307
Mr. Tse Wai Hang HEGHLE 120 2,100 175 18 2,413
Independent non-executive directors BURTES
Mr. Chan Kai Nang REBEEE 178 - - - 178
Mr. Pao Ping Wing BmELE 168 - - - 168
Mr. Ng Chi Keung REBREE 177 - - - 177
883 12,072 14,673 54 27,682

*

The emoluments paid or payable to Mr. Chan Hing Tat

includes emoluments for services as employees of the
Group prior to becoming the director of the Company.

*

EREeNREMREZEEEZHE -
BREEKASARRESERAEE

BEZME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 —FE=—#F+=-A =+ —HI FZE

11. Directors’ and Senior Management’s

Emoluments (Continued)

(@) Directors’ Emoluments (Continued)
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as Directors.

Certain executive Directors are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined in accordance with the
performance of the Group.

There is no chief executive appointed for both years.

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2020: nil).

(b) Five Highest Paid Individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included three (2020: three)
Directors, whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments paid to the

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

N ESREREEEZMNE (&)

@ EFEM&E)
EIBTEEMES IR REERAR
A MAKBEERZ R MT o £
BYRTEETM IR BEEE
BEEMXAT -

ETHTESHEREXMNERBAEK
BRIMEE ZIEL

MEFERGERTITHAE -

FAMBETALHF<SEFTARELR
RRFABHRREAFM (T _FF:
&) o

b) AfIBEHFAL
REE AEBRAUZSHFATEIE
“N(CEEF=MN)EE RS
& R Btz 5T o FREH
MA(CE-TE - RMOAT ML

remaining two (2020: two) individual during the year are R
as follows:
2021 2020
—F=-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Basic salaries, bonuses and other EXFHE  EOAK
benefits H 12 F 4,875 7,397
Performance-related bonuses RIBMEEEA 3,288 7,933
Pension costs — defined contribution  iER 4 Bk 4K — F BB L =X
plan st &l 36 18
8,199 15,348
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI F&E

Directors’ and Senior Management’s 1.

Emoluments (Continued)
Five Highest Paid Individuals (Continued)
The emoluments of the remaining two (2020: two)

(b)

individuals fell within the following bands:

ESRaREEREBEZME (&)

AfimEi AL (&)
Efmu(CE_TF MU)ALZ
& o maERI T

(b)

Number of individuals

N
2021 2020
—B-—-% —TTHF

—= =

HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,001
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,001

HK$10,000,001 — HK$10,500,000

75 153,000,001 —
7 #3,500,0017T
78 4,500,001 —
75 #5,000,0007T
75 5,000,001 —
7 #£5,500,0017T
75 #10,000,0017C —
75 110,500,000

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors

or any of five highest paid individuals as

an inducement

to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office and no Director waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments during each of the two years ended 31

December 2021 and 2020.

BE_ZT-_—FR-_F_ZFTF+_H1
=+—BIEMEFESF  AEEH
EREEY AN FALTERN AL
YA E - EAERFEEMALAERR
RIMAREER B4R BEH 2w
B BEMEZEENCRRAEHRREMN
B < o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B B e B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 8 —F——F+ - H=+—HI FF

12. Employee Benefit Expense (Including

Directors’ Emoluments)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

12. GERFIAZX(BREFWNE)

2021 2020
—EB-—% —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T

Salaries and wages (including Directors’ FekIBEBEEEMS)
remuneration) and bonus NI4T 122,539 118,420

Pension costs — defined contribution RIKE A —E BN E
plans (note) (fF3E) 3,637 4,090
Staff welfare ET1ER 2,364 2,348
128,540 124,858

Note: B 5 -

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit plan under
the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong,
for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group incurred employee
compensation expenses of HK$47,713,000 (2020: HK$40,789,000)
included in the above employee benefit expense, which is employed on
behalf of the third parties to whom these subsidiaries provided building
management services. Such expenses are set-off with other income from
building management services received by the Group.

AEBERERERGNUEAES (RES ] EE
Pl RERBEEERSNEEESHEZEEREE
BUKERKENS - R DREEERFEZ
BOHEH -

ALER D ERBER 2 BT 2 R EBAS R
ST ATE fE 2 RIB A B - z%m ARE
BRFERAZETFEA LMD RBHREH BE
%o

REBEE-FT-_—F+-_A=-+—BHUEFER  £&
EaET iiEBRAMAIANZESFHHALE
#47,713,00070 (ZF == 4 : 7 #40,789,0007T) -
AZEMNBARIME=FREEFEERBEER
REMBEBHMFAE o %56 NAE B R
WEFEERBAEHM AT -
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13. Income Tax Expense

13. IR HHX

2021 2020
—E-—f T -TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BT IT
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BAFEH
Tax for the year (note (a)) RNEEHIE (M) 38,012 60,785
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax AR A b 1 ZE TS B
(“EIT): (EEmBRD
Tax for the year (note (b)) AN 4F 2 18 (M 3% () 10,413 5,582
Mainland China Land Appreciation Tax FR P b S (E R
(“LAT”) (note (c)) ([ #h 32 E D (BT 52 (0)) 3,863 4,536
(Oven)/under-provision in prior years BEFE(BREEE),
BHETR (611) 1,706
Deferred tax charge/(credit) (note 27) EERESZ L (KE)
(Bt 3E27) 10,331 (14,663)
62,008 57,946
Notes: Mz -
@) Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million (@) EREHMAGT  cERERERBHEEE

of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The Directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit
for both years.

CEBELHBZMEHEKR8.25% - MiEd
BE2ABITMAMERIZ16.5% R ERB - T
AHE M SRR AR B R T 2 SEERE 2 F B8
e B 1216.5% 2 Bl — TR -

EERE BEOMNEHMRBM IR Z S
B OUHRAMB®REAMs X REKX - MEF
EZEBRNESB IR ERFEF R
£16.5%:T & -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SO A B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2 —Z ——

13.

Fr-—A=1—HILFE

Income Tax Expense (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2021, all of the Group’s Mainland
China subsidiaries were subject to Mainland China EIT rate of 25%
(2020: 25%).

(© Under the Provisional Regulations of LAT ({#FZE A R 1B £ i 1%

B & 77 1% 1)) effective on 1 January 1994, and the Detailed
Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the
Mainland China on LAT ({F A R B 4+ Hb 38 E R E 1T IR0 =
e 48 Bl ) ) effective from 27 January 1995, all income from the sale
or transfer of state-owned land use rights, buildings and their
attached facilities in the Mainland China is subject to LAT at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation
value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including borrowing costs and property development
expenditures in relation to the gains arising from sales of properties
in the Mainland China effective from 1 January 2004, with an
exemption provided for property sales of ordinary residential

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

13. FIRBRAX (&)

sk« (48)

)

BHE-_ZT-_—F+=A=+— E¢¢F K
S B AT R E A B A R 1E25% (ZF =
TE 5% ZHEHMNTERNM B ERS
i o

RER-NANEF-A—BERZ(FEA
RAMBE L tIBERLTHRIDER—NN
AFE A+ ERERZKhEARKLNE
THRERETERAERAL) B=FF
ME—A—HBi  EPEAMD Sk EER
BLiERE  RENMREMENZ AEK
A BRI ERI0% E60% 2 2 #E H R &
ML EER - EEBRNBEYEMERK
BREAMB L - BEERAETEAM S
EMEMBURBLEERERMEER
H e MERREEEZEERREBANR
FHBRE20% @ TRREEEZMEHEER
R HIBER -

properties ( ¥ | 1% % T =

) if their appreciation values do not

exceed 20% of the sum of the total deductible items.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and (loss)/profit
before income tax expense at applicable tax rates is as

P15 B B X K BR PR 15
EAIZERAM R EZ SR

B X AT (B 18)

follows:
2021 2020
—g-—F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Loss before income tax expense MR EBAXaEE (746,092) (127,396)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate REBNGH I E16.5%
of 16.5% AEZBIA (123,105) (21,020
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T ZE MR zBRZHRETE 191,274 89,262
Tax effect of non-taxable income BRBZBAZ BB E (12,369) (15,491)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax @J AT RERHIAEE
losses (344) (980)
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BAEFE(BEEE),
BETRE (611) 1,706
Provision for LAT for the year TF P -t 1 (B B R 3,863 4,536
Tax effect of LAT deductible for B R 3 1h 25 PAS A 2 AT
Mainland China EIT WL IRER R E (637) (748)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries £ Hfth FIERE (R 28 2 M /B
operating in other jurisdictions RNAIZTRAB Rz ZE 3,175 1,898
Others Hh 762 (1,217)
Income tax expense i B H X 62,008 57,946
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI F&E

14. Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense),

14. Hp2ERA (FX) > 0BRH

The amount of tax relating to each component of other

IH1&

BREM2EKRA(FI3) B EBH2HIE

comprehensive income/(expense) can be summarised as SEMINMOT:
follows:
2021 2020
—¥=—-F ZTCTHE
Before tax Tax Net of tax Before tax Tax Net of tax
K Bt wi BIE B #iig B B HIE BR 1%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT T BET T BEET T
ltems that will not be reclassified to X T8 H #7 & E#1
profit or loss: DHEEE
Deficit on revaluation of buildings ~ EBFE {418
(notes 10, 18 and 27) (W 310 - 181227) = = = (132) 22 (110)
Change in fair value of financial BRAFEFAEMLE
assets at FVTOCI HBAZHBE
EZRFEES 559 - 559 - - -
Item that may be reclassified W THEER A EER
subsequently to profit or loss: DHEEE
Exchange gain on translation of BREBINEBZ
foreign operations A& 18,922 - 18,922 23,559 — 23,559
Other comprehensive income ~ Hit2EUIA 19,481 - 19,481 23,427 22 23,449
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 8 —F——F+ - H=+—HI FF

15. Dividend
(a) Dividend Attributable to the Year

Proposed final dividend of HK$0.20
(2020: HK$0.20) per share

EEARABE

75 #0.207T)

%MOmELq_YE:

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

iz 2
(a) $ $ r- Z Hx )
2021 2020
s St 3 —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
ERTR BETT
56,662 56,662

Final dividend of HK$0.20 (2020: HK$0.20) per share for
the year to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members on 2 June 2022 was proposed by
the Directors on 24 March 2022.

The final dividend proposed after the reporting date has
not been recognised as a liability at the reporting date.

(b) Dividend Attributable to the Previous
Financial Year, Approved and Paid during the
Year

(b)

Final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year of HK$0.20 per share
(2020: final dividend of HK$0.20 per

BEVREEZRPRE
BRE®0.207T
(ZE=EF KPR E

share) FH B #0.207T)

BEN_T-__F=A-t+WNBEZEZ
MRZEZ_FRNAZHZIRE
Z 2 BRI ANFE AR EF
B 020 (ZE ZF F: # #0.20
JT) °

REEAHREZZRABE T E
RBESAHERRAE -

BEMBEEZRE  RERE

1t & A
2021 2020
—T-—-f§ —TEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETR BETT
56,662 56,662
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16. Loss per Share

17.

The calculation of the loss per share of the Company is based
on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$807,930,000 (2020: HK$185,807,000) and the number
of ordinary shares of 283,308,635 (2020: 283,308,635) in issue
during the year.

No diluted loss per share for year ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 was presented as there were no potential ordinary
shares in issue during the year ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

Investment Properties

16. SR EE

RRAREREBENFTEERETRGHEEGA
JE A 4F A /5 18 75 #5807,930,000T (2 =&
F : 5 #185,807,0007T) R F N E 17T L@
f% £r H283,308,635M%(— T — T F:
283,308,635/%) °

BE-T_—FR-F-FFT-A=T—
BIEFEME2INEGREEBHE  thH
REBE-Z_—FR-_Z_TF+_HA=+
—HIEFEYEERT2EELBR -

17. REME

2021 2020
—T-—-f§ ZTTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EBETRT BT T
Fair Value AEE
As at 1 January n—HA—H 20,626,625 21,185,655
Additions R
— Purchase of units — BEEN 407,804 —
— Sublease of leased properties - A EmE 31,664 —
— Construction costs — B A 890 2,356
Transfer to assets held for sale (note 37) BREGFEEE (37 (75,300) (63,787)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) & BB A =) (K 5£38) (105,710) (44,600)
Net fair value loss on investment properties WEMENFEEETE (1,077,458) (452,999)
As at 31 December W+=—HA=+—H 19,808,515 20,626,625
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17.

Investment Properties (Continued)

The Group leases out commercial buildings, industrial
buildings and retail stores under operating leases with rentals
payable monthly. The Group also subleases its leased
properties under operating leases with rentals payable
monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
six years, with unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond initial
period held by lessees only. Majority of the lease contracts
contain market review clauses in the event the lessee exercises
the option to extend. The leases of retail stores contain
minimum annual lease payments that are fixed over the lease
term and lease payment of certain leases of retail stores are
determined by the higher of 10% to 25% of the sale and the
monthly lease payment.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of
the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the
respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or
lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease
term.

All of the Group’s investment properties are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at 31
December 2021 and 2020 by an independent qualified
professional valuer, Cushman & Wakefield Limited (“C&W”), on
market value basis which conforms with The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standard:

° The completed investment properties (whole block of
commercial building) are revalued by adopting income
capitalisation method, which involves certain estimates,
including capitalisation rates and reversionary rental
value;

17.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

REME (&)
AEERBELEHELERESRT IX
RERZERH HeABAXN K&
EAREKEMENCHEHEEY R HE
ABAXN ZEHEE-—RONBEEAS—
EXNF REAHAGERESERVIHHE
HRERHEE - KBEHBEHESH SR
R BREABEATELRE - TEEHH
MEEEERNEENNEENRESFHE
BN MEEFHNETHENEEN
AANAHEF10% £ 25% K FAEERN M
ETPNBSEETE -

AL B 8 R 5% % E % Pk m b N
e RARMAHEONEBEEREZ
DEEHHE  ZFHOLTESHHRE
BEERRESABARERERFTBEZ
MR ZIEERE -

AEBREREMELTUATFERAE
WD BARFARKENE -

AEBEZRENERBIAERERMLE
EEERTAERAR (BBERITIR=_2=
—FRZZZTF+A=T—BREFH
RIS S EERANTmEEEET
Efh:

o CEEREREME(EEFEEZT)RS
WABKOEER  EFFREREE
et R REFEBEE2E THET:
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Investment Properties (Continued)

° The completed investment properties (individual units
(including commercial, industrial and residential
properties) or ground floor retail properties) are revalued
based on direct comparison method, by reference to
market transactions of comparable properties;

° The leased properties under sublease arrangement by
the Group, are revalued based on income capitalisation
method which involves certain estimates, including
capitalisation rates and reversionary rental value; and

° Investment properties under re-development were
revalued on the re-development basis by adopting the
residual method. The value is based on the re-
development potential of the properties as if these
properties will be developed and completed in
accordance with the existing redevelopment proposal at
the date of valuation and is determined by deducting the
estimated total cost of the development, including costs
of construction, professional fee, finance costs,
associated costs and an allowance of profit that duly
reflected developer’s risk associated with the
development from the gross development value.

In determining the fair values of the investment properties, the
Group engages an independent qualified professional valuer to
perform the valuation. The management works with the
independent qualified professional valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for level 3 fair
value measurement. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the investment properties, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the Directors.

In relying on these valuations, the management has exercised
judgement and is satisfied that the methods of valuation
adopted are appropriate and reflective of the current market
conditions.

?xﬁ#ﬁ%(..ﬁ
ERRR A W X (1 B B i (B 15
% TEREENH AN TEEY
) RBEEHBEER  EF2E
RELUE AL T

s AEBESELRHTZEEMERIIR
WABKOEER  EFFRERFE
Mok RREHBEE THE R

s ERREBEVERAMNBIZEERE
HBG - BEMNEERENIRE
£ BEMZENERGERRIZRER
BERNRBERIER K X&B
ERBEMGRAETERERK (B
BRERA EXER - BEKA M
AR AN N 22 75 IR R 2% R 9 B PR TR B
R 2 B B i R B ) T & R

EEERENMEZATER AEEEE

BYARERBEXGEMETHE EEE

BB TABREXMGEMEE  BFEIRA

FEAERLEEMGBERMNREUER  fH

BREMELAFELRERNED  AMES
ERBEREEA -

R FAER - BEECEREAE
WEMATRM 2 EESTZBEE I RRE
RF TR ©
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17. Investment Properties (Continued) 17. HEME(E)

The carrying amount of the Group’s investment properties is a REBREYMHE CEEBEREIRATE
level 3 fair value measurement. There were no investment FFE o RMEFEA - WHERKEYEEA
property transfers into or out of level 3 fair value measurement HEHEIRATEE °
during both years.
The following table gives information about how the fair values TR EANRIEEZSERENEZR
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, FEGERZ A ER TR EIR) 2
the valuation techniques and inputs used). EH e

Investment properties Interrelationship between

held by the Group in significant unobservable

the consolidated statement Fair value as at Valuation Significant Range of significant input(s) and fair value

of financial position 31 December 2021 technique(s) unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs measurement

FEENGEMBRAK R-B--% TERTHEYEA

Mgz RamE :K$OHOO+ BZAFE EERE TERTHERR TERTHERBZHE ATEFBZERMBE

BETT
Completed investment
properties
EERBEYE
Completed investment properties 14,640,000 Income capitalisation Reversionary rental value HK$23 - HK$55 (2020: HK$23 - The higher the reversionary rental

(whole block of commercial (2020: 15,706,000)

building)
BERRENE 14,640,000
(EREEHEET) (Z2=%F:
15,706,000)
Completed investment properties 2,486,465

(individual units (including
commercial, industrial and
residential properties) or ground
floor retail properties)

(2020: 2,244,625)

method

WABEARLA

Direct comparison
method

ERLBA

a%mam% 2,486,465
(AR (REFE -ITXK (ZZZZF 1 2,244,625)
E%m%mrz%m%)

Leased properties
HENE

Leased properties under sublease
arrangement by the Group

FEBENEZHTZHENE 22050(ZF=FF:

22,050 (2020: nil

Income capitalisation
method

®/) WAERLE

BREE

Capitalisation rate

AL E

Price per square foot

BFHRER

Reversionary rental value

HHE

Captialisation rate

ARfEE

HK$56) per month per
square foot for upper-level
office/restaurants premises;
HK$70 - HK$789 (2020: HK$74
- HK$1,089) per month per
square foot for ground floor

shops
mf‘\)# E/‘Z?%Fﬁ

"%55%( T
%MQSEL/%%BE/

wHRELAREGA
BET0TTE B89
(Z2ZZF BBULER
#1,0897T)

2.25% - 3.5% (2020:
2.25% - 3.5%)

2.25%%3.5%
(ZZZZ2F 225%%
3.5%)

HK$8,300 - HK$120,000 (2020:
HK$8,300 - HK$135,000)
per square foot for
commercial properties

HK$2,700 - HK$11,300 (2020:
HK$2,600 - HK$11,300) per
square foot for
industrial properties

HK$5,400 - HK$27,200 (2020:
HK$5,200 - HK$28,000) per
square foot for residential
properties

BREMEGTHREKS,300
TLE#%120000L (=22
TH BB R00TERE
135,0007T)

T£MEETHREH2700T
ERBNI00T(ZE=%
FrBE00TERE
11,3007T)

FEMEETHRER54007T
ZEEB2200(ZE_F
F 5200 ERE
28,0007T)

HK$12-HK$15 (2020: nil) per
month per square foot
SEETHREBVOTERY
BL(ZE-TF: E)
3.25% (2020 ni)

3.25% (ZE=%F: &)

value, the higher the fair value

EBREAS ATELS

The higher the capitalisation rate,
__the lower the fair value
BREdes  ATELE

The higher the price per square
foot, the higher the fair value

STARERLE
ATBUE

The higher the reversionary rental
value, the higher the fair value

GHESS ATEES
The higher the capitalisation rate,

the lower the fair value

AR RES APEME
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17.

Investment Properties (Continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group in

the consolidated statement

of financial position
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Fair value as at
31 December 2021

Valuation Significant

REME (&)

Range of significant

A SO A B

—F+ A=+ —HIFE

Interrelationship between
significant unobservable
input(s) and fair value

technique(s) unobservable input(s)  unobservable inputs measurement
FEEARGEMBRAR R-B=—-% TETTHEHRA
Az RENE TZAZ+-HZAFE HERE TETTHEYE IERTHEYBE2EE ATEAEZIHEMR
HK$'000
EET
Investment properties under re-development
ERBEmE
Investment properties under 2,660,000 Residual method Price per square foot HK$20,000 - HK$22,000 The higher the price per square
re-development (2020: 2,676,000) per square foot for foot, the higher the fair value
office premises
(2020: HK$21,500 -
HK$22,400 per square foot
for office premises);
HK$25,000 - HK$32,000
(2020: HK$26,000 -
HK$32,000) per square
foot for retail properties
ERRENE 2,660,000 FghE BYARER WRENEGTHREE  BTHRERES ATFE
(ZZZ%F: 20000 B 1220000 HE
2,676,000) (CZ-ZF RRENE
FEHREE2,500LE
7 #02,4007T)
ZEMEFIAR
25,000 E
b WSZ 0007
(ZZZ2F:
/% MZG,OOOTEJ;
7 #32,0007L)
Estimated construction HK$3,600 - HK$3,900 (2020:  The higher the estimated
and other professional HK$3,600 - HK$3,900) per construction and other
costs to completion square foot professional costs, the lower
the fair value
RETHRAERER B 5 REE3,600T A BRERABEERA
HERR A EHH3,000T WE - AFEBE
(ZZ=FF: B¥3,6007T
F#%3,9007)
Estimated profit margin 10% The higher estimated profit

required to hold and
develop the investment
properties to
completion
FERBRRENEET
R & At AR

(2020: 10% - 16%)

10%
(ZZZFF:10%E
16%)

margin, the lower the fair
value

EHEIPER S
BE

ATE
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17. REVERE)
B LB FRREWE 2 AR
Eﬁ*ﬁ%@ o

17. Investment Properties (Continued)
There were no changes to the valuation techniques for the
investment properties other than disclosed above during the
year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above investment
properties’ highest and best use. The fair values of certain
investment properties have been adjusted to exclude prepaid
or accrued operating lease income to avoid double counting.

ATEHEDER ERBREAVEZBER
BEME - ETRENEZ AT EEES
B LAHERR T S A E AT
BEBWHE -

R-B-_—F+-A=+—H0 KEEBEEH
BR A2 (B 4075 #512,699,100,000 7T (ZE =&

As at 31 December 2021, certain investment properties of the
Group with total carrying amount of approximately

HK$12,699,100,000 (2020: approximately HK$13,744,500,000)
were pledged to secure borrowings of approximately
HK$1,871,501,000 (2020: approximately HK$1,851,998,000)

£ 1 4078 113,744,500,0007T) 7 & TR E Y
3 I8 DA B A 849 7 51,871,501,0007T
(ZE =T : 47 11,851,998,0007T) Z f&

(note 26). B (Kt 5E26)

18. Property, Plant and Equipment 18. MI¥ - BERRE

Leasehold Leasehold  Fixture, fixtures Motor Leased
lands Buildings improvements and equipment vehicles properties
R#

HELH [ HENERE KERRHE RE HEWE g

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Opening net carrying amount FNREFE 80,805 36,378 15,989 443 1,113 16,722 151,450
Additions #5 - - 3,390 7 - - 3,397
Disposal/write-off e/ - - - (14) (79) - (93)
Deficit on revaluation (note 10) Bft (M 10) - (520) - - - - (520)
Depreciation il (566) (880) (9,426) (118) (150) (8,196) (19,336)
Exchange realignment EXAE 302 - - 8 8 - 318
Closing net carrying amount FREMFE 80,54 34,978 9,953 326 892 8,526 135,216
As at 31 December 2021 R-B--%

+-A=+-8

Cost/Valuation A/ (5 (E 88,930 34,978 41,759 12,893 3,367 24,729 212,656
Accumulated depreciation Bt & (8,389) - (37,806) (12,567) (2,475) (16,203) (77,440)
Net carrying amount REFE 80,54 34,978 9,953 326 892 8,526 135,216
Analysis of cost/valuation BA/fEES
At cost BHA 88,930 - 47,759 12,893 3,367 24,729 177,678
At professional valuation REEHEE - 34,978 - - - = 34,978

88,930 34,978 47,759 12,893 3,367 24,729 212,656
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18. 1% « i E &2 & (48)

Leasehold Leasehold Fixture, fixtures Motor
lands Buildings improvements and equipment vehicles  Leased properties Total
B
ME+i BF HENELE RERZE e HENE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Opening net carrying amount FNREFE 80,703 37,778 22,519 678 1,279 10,755 153,712
Additions =0 - - 3672 2 - 11,451 15125
Disposal/write-off HE /i - - - - ) - ()
Deficit on revaluation (notes 10 and 14)  Eff & 18 (M 5T 10%14) - (520) - - - - (520)
Depreciation WE (541) (880) (10,202) (244) (180) (5,484) (17531)
Exchange realignment 5% A 643 - - 7 19 - 669
Closing net carrying amount FRIEEFE 80,805 36,378 15,989 443 1,113 16,722 151,450
As at 31 December 2020 ) k- k- 3 3
+zA=+-8
Cost/Valuation WA/ 88,484 36,378 44,369 13,208 3822 25,047 211,303
Accumulated depreciation Bt & (7.679) - (28,380) (12,760) (2,709) (8,325) (59,853)
Net carrying amount REFE 80,805 36,378 15,989 443 1,18 16,722 151,450
Analysis of cost/valuation BA/fEES
At cost R 88,484 - 44,369 13,208 3802 25,047 174925
At professional valuation REZEE - 36,378 - - - - 36,378
88,484 36,378 44,369 13,20 3822 25,047 211,303
The above items of property, plant and equipment less their riaimE BMEMREEEECHGAFITA
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using straight- HARAESE R TIEERFEEFHRE
line method, at the following rates per annum: &:
Leasehold lands/leased properties Over the lease period E+LH THEME R A
Buildings 2% BgF 2%
Leasehold improvements 10%-30% HEWMERE 10%-30%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10%-20% R REREZE 10%-20%

Motor vehicles 6%-15% RE 6%-15%
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s buildings in Hong Kong
are stated at valuation of HK$34,978,000 (2020:
HK$36,378,000). The Group’s buildings were revalued by C&W
based on net replacement cost method. For the year ended 31
December 2021, a revaluation loss of approximately
HK$520,000 (2020: HK$520,000) had been recognised.

As at 31 December 2021, leasehold land and buildings of the
Group with carrying amount of HK$97,397,000 (2020:
HK$98,873,000) were pledged to secure borrowings of the
Group (note 26).

The fair value of the Group’s owner-occupied buildings is a
level 3 recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the

opening and closing fair value balance is provided below.

There was no transfers into or out of level 3 during the year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

ME BERREGE)
RZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H A&EBRE
7B Z 18 F DAG (B 78 34,978,000t (— T =
T 4F A #36,378,0007T) FIBR - AEE 2
BFHBERTRFEENNEER - H
BT F+_A=+—HIEFEEMHE
B4 7 8520000 (ZE T F: B
520,0007T) B R °

RZBE_—F+_A=+—0H ' ~EEEF
BREE A8 197,397,000 (ZE-ZTF : /&
#:08,873,0007T) B & T #h RiEF A
KEBZEE (M 5E26) ©

AREFEERBFZATFEAFIREELEA
TEE - FURFRATEESHZHE
YW o

RAFE > WHEEAREHEIL -

2021 2020
—g-—% —EBFTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BT T
Opening balance (level 3 recurring FHEEHR (BIRET M
fair value) NE(E) 36,378 37,778
Depreciation e (880) (880)
Deficit on revaluation of properties held EMFIEERAMEZEE
for own use (520) (520)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair FRESR(EIRETM
value) NEE) 34,978 36,378
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18. #1¥ B &2 & (&)

In determining the fair values of the buildings, the Group
engages an independent qualified professional valuer to
perform the valuation. The management works with the
independent qualified professional valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for level 3 fair
value measurement. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the owner-occupied buildings, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the Directors.

There has been no change to the valuation technique during
the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual
use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values

of these buildings are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used).

Building

EEEBTAVER AEECZBBEY
AEAREXMGEMETHE EEEES
TEEMBEMLEMS EREIRLTE
EFEEE 2 HERMEBIE - HEBE
FRAFELRERES  HERESTHRE
KERE -

RAFE HERTHEZE -

ATFEHENER MR BEREE
B BEERARLEESR

TREIBRNMEEZFETAFENE
REMERGBERMRBE) 2ER -

Interrelationship between
significant unobservable

held by the Group measured Fair value as at Valuation Significant Range of significant input(s) and fair value
at revaluation model 31 December 2021 technique(s) unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs measurement
RZB=—-%
AEARARER +=-A=+-H FERTREHRA
BEHEZEF ZATE EERE TETTHEHR TETTHEYB2HEE ATFEAEZIHERR
HK$'000
BEBTT

Owner-occupied buildings

34,978 (2020: 36,378)  Net replacement cost  Building replacement cost HK$4.300 per square foot

The higher the building

per square feet (2020: HK$4,300) (note) replacement cost per feet
with reference to
comparables, the higher
the fair value
BERETF 34978 (ZE=TF:  FEEXAR BYHREBFEEMAR ¥R REH4300T 2RALENEZEREF
36,378) (ZBZZFEH4300m)  EERAEE  ATEM
GES) =

Note: Building replacement cost per square feet is determined with
reference to market comparables of constructing works, taking into
account of use, location and other individual factors such as total
floor level and type of structure.

Ma: 8FTREFEERATIZENS LALER
ZRETEMEE  EhsthkAE BN
REBERBEYBASEEMENRE -
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
The Group as Leasee
Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and

equipment)
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZFTF
+=-—A=+—8
As at 31 December 2021 N ——F
+—-A=+—8
For the year ended 31 December #HE_T_ZT 4
2020 TZA=+—HLFE
Depreciation charge TEMXZ
Additions BN
Exchange realignment M 3 8 B

Total cash outflow for leases HERSRHRAE

For the year ended 31 December #HZ_-Z——4
2021 T A=+ —HLFE
Depreciation charge TEMXZ
Exchange realignment P 3 38 £

Total cash outflow for leases HERERHLE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

18. W% - W E R H (&)

AEEEHBEREA
ERREEGIAME  BEREE)

Leasehold
land

HELTH

HK$’000
EHETR

80,805

80,541

(541)

643

(566)
302

Leased
properties
HEME
HK$’000
EETR

16,722
8,526
(5,484)

11,451

(8,196)

Total
W
HK$’000
EETR

97,527
89,067
(6,025)
11,451

643

(6,244)

(8,762)
302

(12,108)

For both years, the Group leases various commercial and
industrial premises for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of three to four years, but may have
extension options as described below. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.

RMEFE AEEHEETEBERTE
MENEEE - BN =ZZEWEFEZEEF
HARTSL - MERIN T X Pl A IR 242 o
P E A H R AT AR S TR AR AR
BEAEGNCERELETARORFINTL

FH o
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

The Group as Leasee (Continued)

The Group has extension options in a number of leases for
commercial and industrial premises. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets
used in the Group’s operations. The majority of extension
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessors. The Group assesses at lease
commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options. The potential exposures to
these future lease payments for extension options in which the
Group is not reasonably certain to exercise:

Lease liabilities recognised
as at 31 December

18.

A SO A B

—F+ A=+ —HIFE

ME - HERRIEE)
AEEEHEBEANE)
AEBERETREBERIXDENEE
THRAEREEE RTEERSBYE
ERNTASEEEELLEMANEELY
BRI - IR D ERZEZEEETR
AEBITEM AR L HEAITE
AEEREERBBERTERERERTE
SITELEREERE AKEY REAEME
ETREREZERNZERALREENRZ

N3 By 488 -
BT E

Potential future lease payments
not included in lease liabilities
as at 31 December

2021 2020 2021 2020
R+-B=+—B#%2EHY R+-ZB=+—-BXRFANHEEREMN
HEaRE BERKREEMRR
—E-—-f —EC-FE —E¥=-& k- ek 33
(undiscounted) (undiscounted)
(RIFTIR) (RIFH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BB T T
Commercial and BERIEME
industrial premises - &%
— Hong Kong 29,428 17,413 91,507 58,283
During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the REBE_ZE—FR_Z-_FF+_A=+

Group did not exercise any extension options.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option upon the occurrence of
either a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there is no
such triggering event.

—BHIEFE AEEYETEEATERE
g

Itk S
B BB 7 ATH A P BE 12 I #0 E B

CTRBEBRENHRBERHRERE
AEH

CEMRORENTEERERE REE
R HR_F_FFt-A=t+—HL
FE HMEEEBEREM-
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18. ¥1% « & R :& 6 (&)
Restrictions or covenants on leases HERSzE 'ﬁ ]
In addition, lease liabilities of HK$29,428,000 are recognised o RZEZ—F+ZA=+—A®ERHE
with related sublease of the leased properties of EE1 7B 1£29,428,0007T * T EWZ 2 HHE
HK$22,050,000 included in investment properties and right-of- 7 F & #22,050,000 TTEFA R E W ZE - miE
use assets included in property, plant and equipment of FH*E%E?%%‘S 526 OOOfEﬁ?\%% &% 5
HK$8,526,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: lease liabilities FHECCT_THFE HEABAE
of HK$17,413,000 and related right-of-use assets of 17413 0007 R BB A # & &E B %
HK$33,517,000 included in property, plant and equipment). 33,517,0007T5t A ~ BB K EME) © B
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than HABBNREEEENERERI - H
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the EmFETEMERNRE  HEEETFH
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for {Efa IR -
borrowing purposes.
19. Properties for Sale 19.
2021 2020
—g-—f —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BT T
Carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—HZE®E 940,144 1,025,080
Additions B 56,930 2,093
Disposals HE (76,460) (100,317)
Adjustment (note) (K EE) (40,960) -
Exchange realignment M 5, 3 B 9,050 13,288
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZE@E 888,704 940,144
2021 2020
—¥-—-f —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETR BT T
Completed properties for sale BEKFEDE 277,143 385,569
Properties under development BHEERTYE
for sale 611,561 554,575
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+-_A=+—BZ2E@EAE 888,704 940,144

Note: The amount represents the reversal of the accruals on construction
works in respect of the completed properties for sale remained
unsold at the end of the reporting period upon the final payment
agreed with the respective suppliers during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Mis: Ze@EEBZE_T_—F+t-A=+—8B1t
FRERKNESHBAGE < KHAR
FEMEMRIMAE N 2 EEKTEWHE MR
B2 S T2 AT A
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19. Properties for Sale (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, properties under development for
sale of HK$611,561,000 (2020: HK$554,575,000) represent the
carrying amount of the properties expected to be completed
over one year from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2021, included in the completed properties
for sale was a joint operation project amounting to
approximately HK$3,360,000 (2020: HK$3,360,000) to jointly
develop a property site for residential purpose located at 1-11
Lai Yin Street and 2-12 Jones Street, Tai Hang, Hong Kong in
which the Group has a 20.24% equity interest. In 2014, the
Directors determined that the Group’s share of the completed
units would be put up for sale when completed and,
accordingly, reclassified its proportionate share of the interest
in this property development from investment properties under
construction to properties under development for sale. The
Group bears a proportionate share of the joint operation’s
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. The occupation
permit was released by the Buildings Department during the
year ended 31 December 2016. During the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020, there is no revenue and cost of
properties for sale recognised.

. FEYEGE)
R-ZE——4+-_A=+—H0 #FEEED
) 2 75 #5611,561,0007T (C T - T 4 : B #E
554,575,0007T) & 78 Hi 45 1A 3R 5 B9 R #E T
BB FRTI2MEZERE-

RZZE——F+=-A=+—H BEKEF
YIEBTE— E&ﬁmﬁwawawmdfa
T4 B #3,360,000T) 2B EIEE 0 A

HREAME MR EBSANEBEHIEINR
&ii*éimﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁZW%m%
HAAREBHEF20.24% 2 BlE - R -F
NE BEERTAEED(hZBEEKEM
BREKEBRE Bt NEBGERL
PIEGZYXERBERS  AERKE
NMEEFTOREFELRETYE - X5 H
EEERLOIEBEAEEB 2 EE AF -
WHEkAY BEFBEREBEE_ZT— X F+
— A=+ BLEFEREEAEFAE -
REBEE_E-_—FRK-_ZT_FTF+_A=+
—HIEFE BERREEWERZ LK
z]go
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20. Trade and Other Receivables/Loan

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

20. ESRHEMEWKRIE FEWK

Receivables X
2021 2020
— # == $ = ?
HK$°000 HK$’000
T IT BET T
Current assets: HEEE -
Trade receivables 5 W FIA
— contract with customers —XFAaH 7,255 3,933
— rental receivables —EWHE 2 27,451 39,879
Total trade receivables B 5 W R IE B8 34,706 43,812
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (4,667) (5,072)
Total trade receivables, net B o E N IE A EE o SRR 30,039 38,740
Loan receivables (Note) eI E S (FRE) 147,191 147,298
Less: allowance for credit losses B s B EERE (142,023) (142,423)
Total loan receivables, net JEWE K E%E - FHE 5,168 4,875
Other receivables, utility deposits and ot JiE W SR IE H AR
prepayment & kA ﬁ RIE 116,550 127,553
Total trade and other receivables DEBRBEEZES R
categorised as current assets E {th fE U 3R B 4B %8 151,757 171,168
Non-current assets: e B EE
Loan receivables (Note) FEURE S (FRE) 16,552 19,761
168,309 190,929
As at 1 January 2020, the gross carrying amount of trade RZBE_ZTF—A—H REHAFFPEHHN
receivables from contracts with customers amounted to B 5 E B 2 SR E 8B & 75 18,017,000
HK$8,017,000. JT °
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20. Trade and Other Receivables/Loan

Receivables (Continued)
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, based on invoice dates,
the ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net of allowance
for credit losses, was the following:

20. ESRHEMEWKRIE FEWK

B (E)

KRB —FRZE_FF+—A=1+—H
BEZRZEAH  BHRKFEBEINREEE
BREEZERSWERIDOT

2021 2020

—g-—f —ZETF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BET T

0-30 days 0F 30K 10,950 15,135
31-90 days 31E90K 8,863 7,997
91-180 days 91E180K 2,508 8,564
Over 180 days B iB180K 7,718 7,044
Total trade receivables, net Eo NGB BRE  FE 30,039 38,740

Normally, other than those property leasing rental receivables
which are secured by rental deposits, the Group does not
obtain collateral from other customers.

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$30,039,000 (2020: HK$38,740,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, HK$10,226,000 (2020: HK$15,608,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default
as these debtors have a good business relationship with the
Group and recurring overdue records of these debtors with
satisfactory settlement history.

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables directly.

—RNE BUESRSBERZZFNE
HERKESIN AKRETEREMER
WEE M e

RZZT—_—F+-A=+—8 K&EEzZ
FERFBEERKVEN RS APE AR
T 42 {8 /8 530,039,000 (Z T =T F : /&
#£38,740,0007T) 2 [EFEA o T Ak eRF -
& 10,226,000 (Z & = T F: B &
15,608,0007T) B # HI90 K sk LA £ » W IzF
REBEY RARZEEKABRLAERS
RTEBBE MZEEBAHESAR
ERBSELEHOBRTIE 2R -

BRAE 5 B WA 2B B B IA B F AR AD
8% BRIEAKEE MWL ZERIR A8
HBE EZERT  BEBRSEERN
B 5 & WK A M o
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20. Trade and Other Receivables/Loan

Receivables (Continued)

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits for the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 are set out in note 39.2(b).

Note:

As at 1 January 2020, included in loan receivables is an aggregate amount
of HK$4,000,000 which were secured, interest-bearing at Hong Kong
Prime Interest Rate minus 2.5% per annum and repayable within 1 year
from reporting date. The repayment date of these loan receivables was
extended by one year during the year ending 31 December 2020 and
2021.

For the remaining loan receivables amounting to HK$17,720,000 (2020:
HK$20,636,000) which are secured, interest-bearing at Hong Kong Prime
Interest Rate minus 2% to 2.5% per annum (2020: 2% to 2.5% per annum)
for the first 36 months from the date of loan drawdown and thereafter at
the Hong Kong Prime Interest Rate. The loan receivables were repayable in
216 to 360 monthly instalments (2020: 216 to 360 monthly instalments)
with the final instalment payable in year 2035 to 2048 (2020: year 2035 to
2048). As at 31 December 2021, loan receivables of HK$10,276,000 (2020:
HK$11,437,000) could be early terminated by the borrowers at the principal
and accrued interest after 60 months after drawndown date.

The current portion of HK$5,168,000 (2020: HK$4,875,000) which is
expected to be recovered within one year is classified as current assets
while the balance of HK$16,552,000 (2020: HK$19,761,000) is classified as
non-current assets which is expected to be recovered over one year.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group granted an
unsecured loan of HK$155,282,000 (the “Unsecured Loan”) to two
beneficial owners of purchaser of Lucky Way as the joint borrowers of the
Unsecured Loan (the “Borrowers”). As at 31 December 2020, following the
settlement of HK$31,170,000 and the addition in interest receivable of
HK$18,311,000, the gross carrying amount of the Unsecured Loan is
HK$142,423,000. The Borrowers did not repay the Unsecured Loan based
on the repayment schedule. HK$45,000,000 of the Unsecured Loan has
already been past due since 4 May 2020 and remaining Unsecured Loan
has also been past due subsequent to the reporting date. In view of this,
the Directors considered that this Unsecured Loan has already been
credit-impaired and thus impairment loss of HK$142,423,000 is
recognised to profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2020.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Borrowers settled
HK$400,000 and thus a reversal of impairment loss of HK$400,000 is
recognised to profit or loss.

No loan receivables (other than the Unsecured Loan stated above) are past
due as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. The loan receivables are secured
by second mortgage on the properties located in Hong Kong (other than
the Unsecured Loan stated above). The Group is not permitted to sell or
repledge the properties in the absence of default by the borrower. There
has not been any significant changes in the quality of the collateral held for
the loans receivables. Details of impairment assessment for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are set out in note 39.2(b).
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Financial Assets at FVTPL/FVTOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL

As at 31 December 2021, included in financial assets at FVTPL
are structured bank deposits of HK$2,815,000 (2020:
HK$15,468,000) placed with a bank in the Mainland China and
contain embedded derivatives which returns are determined by
reference to the return of the underlying portfolio of listed
shares invested by the bank and the duration of deposits
placed. The deposits could be withdrawn at the Group’s
discretion and are subject to early termination option of the
issuing bank at the price of the principal outstanding plus the
return of underlying portfolio of listing shares up to the date of
withdrawal/early termination. Annual return rate as at 31
December 2021 is 3.42% (2020: varies from 1.50% to 3.10%
depending on the duration of the deposits placed).

As at 31 December 2020, structured bank deposits of
HK$47,540,000 were placed with a bank in the Mainland China
with maturity of less than three months and certain embedded
derivative which return were determined by reference of foreign
exchange rate. The deposits were subject to early termination
option of the issue bank or by mutual agreement. Annual
coupon rate varied from 1.10% to 4.00%, depending on the
actual foreign exchange rate.

The structured bank deposits are reclassified as financial
assets at FVTPL because their contractual cash flows do not
represent solely the payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at FVTPL as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
are stated at fair values based on valuation provided by the
issuing bank. The fair value measurements are categorised to
Level 2.

21.
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21.

Financial Assets at FVTPL/FVTOCI
(Continued)

Financial assets at FVTOCI

As at 31 December 2021, financial assets at FVTOCI which
were investment in unlisted funds of HK$28,605,000 (2020: nil)
are stated at fair values.

Directors have elected to designate the investments as at
FVTOCI as they believe that the investments are held for long-
term strategic purposes and not expected to be sold in the
foreseeable future.

Financial assets at FVTOCI as at 31 December 2021 are stated
at fair value based on the net asset value of fund (i.e. fair value
of the portfolio included in the fund). The fair value
measurements are categorised to Level 2.

21.
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22. Restricted Bank Deposits/Short-Term
Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash Equivalents

The cash and bank balances of the Group was summarised as

22. ZIRFVRITHER EHRIT

HHERELEEYD
AREZRSRBABBZBENT -

follows:

2021 2020
—E-—% —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T IT BET T
Restricted bank deposits SRR HI B ITER 16,110 64,082

Short-term bank deposits with original REBABH=EAZ
maturity over three months WEBETER 251,181 425,668
Cash and cash equivalents BekREEEY 885,358 601,806
Total cash and bank balances Re RRITHEBERE 1,152,649 1,091,556

Restricted bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents earn
interest at floating rates based on the daily bank deposit rates.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, short-term bank deposits
with original maturity over three months were placed up till 1
year depending on the immediate cash requirement of the
Group, and earned fixed-rate interest at respective time
deposits rates of 1.50% (2020: ranging from 1.01% to 1.09%)
per annum.

Included in total cash and bank balances of the Group is
HK$306,449,000 (2020: HK$179,864,000) of bank balances
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) placed with banks in the
Mainland China. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

The Directors considered that the fair value of the cash and
cash equivalents is not materially different from their carrying
amount.

ERFIBTFFIARREMASFEYR
1B 5 RRITHE A XL F B RERERF S, o

R —FR=—F-FTF+_A=1+—1 "
REBHEBRBHEH=ZEAZEHETHE
REREFRRE—F  RIEAEE AR
ReFRME  WIEBREBZ2ERERSF
F2%1.50% (ZZE=ZFF : N F1.01%=1.09%)
BREXE E R = 2 F 8 o

FAREERS RIRTERBBERRETN
AR B A % B8R 1T A& 80U #5306,449,000
TT(ZZE-ZTF : ##179,864,0007T) Z AR
E(TAREDFTERITES - AR IER
BEREZBZEE - RERBERNM 2 INEE
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22. Restricted Bank Deposits/Short-Term 22.

Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash Equivalents

(Continued)

In the course of business, certain bank accounts were opened
and held in the name of certain subsidiaries in form of trust on
behalf of third parties to whom these subsidiaries provided
building management services. As at the reporting date, those
bank balances held in form of trust on behalf of third parties
and were not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group amounted to HK$82,242,000 (2020:

HK$71,128,000).
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ZRFERITHER BRI
®BRERREFEYE)

REFBRES  ETHBEBRARIUNERER
FZAMBARMEREEFEREREZ
ADUGEEERAREZREESE THRITE
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23. Trade and Other Payables 23. B R HMWEMRKIE
2021 2020
—EB-—4% —E-TE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIT BT T
Trade payables B ENRIE 17,405 11,219
Receipt in advance TE U TR 1A 25,127 13,068
Deposits received on disposal of HENBAR ZBEWILS
subsidiaries (note 37) (B 5£37) - 9,568
Disposit received on disposal of an HEREMEZEWZS
investment property (note 37) (M 5£37) 1,500 —
Rental deposits received BElHEEEE 156,653 157,870
Accruals on construction works T IE R E 200,661 263,304
Other accrued expenses and other Ha T ERA R
payables Hfh FE FRIR 144,542 164,660
545,888 619,689
Trade payables had credit periods ranging from 30 to 90 days. B S EMNRIEZEEBHN FI0EWX - 1B
Based on invoice dates, the ageing analysis of trade payables BREOH BZREMFBEZERESTEH
was the following: a0 -
2021 2020
—T-—F —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T IT BT T
0-30 days 0E30K 4,101 1,335
31-90 days 31£90K 3,254 852
Over 90 days B 1B90K 10,050 9,032
Total trade payables BB HIARE 17,405 11,219
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24. Contract Liabilities

S AR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI F&E

24. 8HAEE

2021 2020
—g-—f —EBFTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BT T

Deposits received in advance associated

BHBAEMNT IR

with pre-sale of properties for sale HEMEZERGS
situated in:
— Hong Kong — BB 7,006 7,006
— the Mainland China — AR 40,180 20,676
47,186 27,682
As at 1 January 2020, the carrying amount of contract liabilities R-E-_ZEF—F—H AYEEZEAEE

is HK$60,086,000.

7% 7% #60,086,0007T ©

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, deposits received in REBR-_TE—FRZT-_FTF+=-_A=
advance received by Group for the disposal of properties for + AR ERERN R EHRBT —FR
sale are expected to be completed and sold within one year BRTREEZHEMERBKTS -

from the end of the reporting period.
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24. Contract Liabilities (Continued) 24, SHBE(E)
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRINTAFEREESHABERR 2K
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward HEEARERBEHERBTCRANEE
contract liabilities and how much relates to performance 25 -
obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.
Sales of Sales of
completed completed
properties for properties for
sale sale
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
HECER HEBE B
HEME FEME
BECT-—F EoESsSmiacs
+=ZA=+—0 Pyt
ILEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Revenue recognised that was included in st AF AL ABELEH 2
the contract liabilities balance at the 2R =
beginning of the year 14,487 46,510
Revenue to be recognised from AARBITRABESTER
unsatisfied performance obligations Pl & 82,193 51,541

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

The Group receives 10% to 30% of the contract amount as
deposits from customers when they sign the sale and
purchase agreement. However, depending on market
conditions, the Group may offer customers a discount
compared to the listed sales price, provided that the
customers agree to pay the balance of the consideration early
while construction is still ongoing. The deposits result in
contract liabilities being recognised throughout the property
construction period until the customer obtains control of the
completed properties for sale.

YEORRANBESEL R RIER
m -

AEEEEFZEEEHZFWREOE
BZ10%EI0NIERFTFRIE » A @ A%
Bl R T A EBREFREH]
T ARREFPREERETRINAESE
THERFXNREHRE ZFTER
EERDEZENRABRIENEAE &
EFFPRRCERGENEZITHRBL -
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25. Lease Liabilities 25 HEARE
2021 2020
—_T-—%f —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T IT BET T
Lease liabilities payables ENEEEE
Within one year —F R 13,729 9,432

With a period of more than one year — & LA _E{B 48 18 Y 4 Hi ]
but not more than

two years 15,699 7,981
29,428 17,413
Less: amount due for settiement B R12@ AR HREES A
within 12 months shown NEBBECSHE
under current liabilities (13,729) (9,432)

Amount due for settlement after 12 FM2{E B 1& B H;5(E % A IER
months shown under non-current =Xy

liabilities 15,699 7,981
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to ERREEABE 2 METEHEEEEFX
lease liabilities is 3.93% (2020: 3.93%). 53.93% (ZZE-—ZF :3.93%) °
All lease liabilities were denominated in the functional FIEEARYUEBEEERE 2 EE

currencies of the relevant group entities. BEHE -
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26. Borrowings

26. £ &

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

2021 2020
—g-—f —EBFTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BT T
Current liabilities mEBE

Bank loans — secured RITER—FER 1,396,158 180,605
Non-current liabilities EmBAE

Bank loans — secured RITER-—BER 475,343 1,671,393

1,871,501 1,851,998
Carrying amount of bank loans repayable 1R B35 % T HE T8 X

based on the scheduled repayment HEREEE CRITEKER

dates set out in the loan agreements: HE:

Within one year —FR 1,396,158 63,105

More than one year, but not exceeding —F N EETBBRE

two years 26,297 1,671,393

More than two years, but not ME EEBT@BBAF

exceeding five years 449,046 —
Carrying amount of bank loans that BIERERERBERGIR

contain a repayable on demand clause REBBE)BRBEER B

(shown under current liabilities) but BT ERBHEERER

repayable based on the scheduled ZHRTEREmE:

repayment dates set out in the loan

agreements:

Within one year —FRA - 117,500
Total bank loans RITERAEE 1,871,501 1,851,998
Carrying amount of bank loans matured R—FRNE R BFEREK

within one year or those contain a EBEGERZIRITERZE

repayment on demand clause (shown HEGIRREEAE)

under current liabilities) (1,396,158) (180,605)
Amount shown under non-current FmEBBEMIEE

liabilities 475,343 1,671,393




202144k

S AR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S A B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE=—#+=-A =+ —HI F&E

26. Borrowings (Continued)
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, bank loans are secured by
certain investment properties and property, plant and
equipment of the Group with a total carrying value of
approximately HK$12,796,497,000 (2020: HK$13,843,373,000) as
set out in notes 17 and 18 respectively to the consolidated
financial statements.

The analysis that shows the remaining contractual maturities of
the Group’s borrowings is set out in note 39.2(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings at the
reporting date were as follows:

RITERK
— BBER

Bank loans
— HK$-denominated loans

26. & (&)

RZBEZ—FR-E-_TF+_A=+—
B BITERDUAAEERERELN B
12,796,497,000t (= & — T F: B ¥
13,843,373,0007T) 2 & TR E W A K Y
¥ BEKREBERER  DAHREE
B 75 3R R B 51718 o

BRAKEEEZHTENIMBZ M
AR A B 5 WK M RE39.2(c) ©

REEEMAEEE S BEANENT -

2021 2020
—T-—F —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BEET T
Hong Kong HIBOR
Inter-bank +1.15% p.a. to
Offered Rate HIBOR+1.6% p.a.
(“HIBOR”) BERE
+1.15% p.a. to W B+ FF =
HIBOR+1.6% p.a. 115% E B
EERITRE A &R R
wRR(EERE +5 N E1.6%
HED +FEF=E
115% EEFE
FZ%#F R

+ 5 F #1.6%
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27. Deferred Taxation

— = A — AR

The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

217.
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BIEH IR
EEBERA 2 #BHMT

2021 2020

—g-—F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETR BET T

As at 1 January R—HA—H 105,945 120,859
Deferred taxation charged/(credited) to: RATEERR,GtA)Z

IR RLIA

— Profit or loss (note 13) — Bz (fFE13) 10,331 (14,663)

— Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) — HEHE A F (M 5E38) (970) (229)

— Asset revaluation reserve (note 14) — BEEEHFHEPIFE14 - 22

As at 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 115,306 105,945

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

and the movements during the current and prior years:

ATBREEHBARARER I TREL
MBEBBEREEAMRAFERBEFE

Surplus on
revaluation
Accelerated of owner-
tax Fair value occupied
depreciation gain (note) properties Tax loss Total
mE  ATEEKE EffEH
BIERE (HiEE) MERE BIEBRE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BB BT BETT
As at 1 January 2020 RZFZEF—H—H 118,324 15,296 6,640 (19,401) 120,859
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss RBE (BTN /M8 (B 213)

(note 13) (11,759) (15,296) 64) 12,456 (14,663)
Credit to other comprehensive FAEMZERA

income (note 14) (K 5E14) - - (22) - (22)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38() & BT 8 2 7 (9 3£38(1) (229) - - — (229)
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-Z45+-A=+-AR 106,336 - 6,554 (6,945) 105,945
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss REFHMNR/GEA) (M F13)

(note 13) 10,810 - (86) (393) 10,331
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38(g)) 1 B 2 A (B 3E38(e) (970) - - - (970)
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ-F+ZA=1+—H 116,176 - 6,468 (7,338) 115,306

Note: The amount represented the taxable temporary difference arisen Mist: ZeBEEEEARBRRESK REXL

from the fair value gain on properties upon the change of use from
the purpose of earning rentals or/and for capitalisation to sale in the
ordinary course of business which is then classified as properties

for sale.

EREAREGRREFHEZR AME2
RNPEREMEEZ BRBEREEE &
BITDBREFEWE -
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27. Deferred Taxation (Continued) 27.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings
of the Mainland China subsidiaries of approximately
HK$75,049,000 (2020: HK$103,447,000) of which no deferred
tax liabilities has been recognised. No deferred tax liabilities
have been recognised in respect of these differences because
the Group is in a position to control the dividend policies of its
subsidiaries and the Directors considered that no dividend will
be declared by these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.
Thus, such difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable

EEHIE ()
R-TE——F+—-A=+—H KEEEH
AR A B B B A B R 0 R B 2 A8 B R
4 2= 58 48 58 4978 575,049,000 (T E =&
F 1 5 #51083,447,0007T) I £ #E R E T T
BE - ARAEEREAEHENBARZ
BEBRUAREERAZEWB AR KA
RERTEETREE MU ERZEEE
BREEHIAAEG Bt - BEAEZREET
R EGRER -

future.
28. Share Capital 28. k&
2021 2020
—2--F —ZT-ZF
Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
R 2B BT R EE BT
Authorised: JEE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 BREEEBI0T
each TER 5,000,000,000 500,000  5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BREARAR:
As at 1 January and K—A—BK
31 December +-A=+—H 283,308,635 28,331 283,308,635 28,331
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29. Reserves

29. &

The Group x&
2021 2020
—E-—%F —E-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETR AT IT
Share premium (note (a)) & 19 5 (B (Pt 5% (a)) 690,811 690,811
Capital redemption reserve (note (b)) & 7K FE 0] 4 (BT 5 (o)) 295 295
Investment revaluation reserve WEBMhFHE 559 -
Retained profits R % A 18,745,477 19,610,069
Exchange reserve M 5 R 1,241 (17,762)
Special reserve (note (c)) 5 RI R # (MaE () 1,848 1,848
Proposed final and special dividends BERARERRE
(note 15(a)) (B 3E15(a) 56,622 56,662
19,496,893 20,341,923
Notes: P 7 -
@) Share premium represents the excess of consideration received @) B EEEMRBRESRERTRNAEE
over the par value of share issued. AR o
(o) Capital redemption reserve represents the amount equal to the par (o) EARABEOFBEREBEERLBERMEEZ K
value of the bought-back shares, and such funds transferred from B ZE5EeNEBEAREBER -
retained profits.
© The special reserve of the Group represented the difference © AEBZFRFEBRBRBEAEE-—NNEF

between the nominal value of the share capital issued by the
Company in exchange for the nominal value of the share capital of

BAEEZER -

the subsidiaries pursuant to the Group’s re-organisation in 1997.

Details of the movements in the above reserves are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 192

FiFEBEz EBFE
192F195H 2 4R &

to 195 to the consolidated financial statements.

BN
E 5

EHRBARFERTRAEEIBRINE AR

M mERE

o
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29. ﬁ%ﬁ(nﬁ

—F+ A=+ —HIFE

The Company AAT
Proposed
Capital final and
Share  redemption  Contributed Retained special
premium reserve surplus profits dividends Total
&% ERRHR
RpEE RERE MRS REEN  BIRR 4E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR RETT EETT RETT EETT BETT
(note (a)) (note (o)) (note (c))
GER) (B & (b)) (R ()
Asat 1 January 2020 RZZ-ZE-4-H 690,811 295 1,319,950 579,920 56,662 2,647,638
Profit and other comprehensive income ﬁmmﬂ&ﬁWEEWA
for the year - - - 1,234 - 1,234
Final dividend paid ERZE-NEXH
for 2019 note 15(0) T S (B 150 - - - - (56,662) (56,662)
Proposed final dividend BE_S-TERY
for 2020 (note 15(a) T & (B 3H15(a) - - (56,662) - 56,662 -
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZFE
+_H =t+-H 690,811 295 1,263,288 581,154 56,662 2,592,210
Profit and other comprehensive income A K E 2 EHA
for the year - - - 621 - 621
Final dividend paid ﬁ T_TERH
for 2020 (note 15(0)) (W #15(0)) - - - - (56,662) (56,662)
Proposed final dividend E%:?:—Eiﬁ
for 2021 {note 15(a) 1 & (M2 151d)) - - (56,662) - 56,662 -
As at 31 December 2021 R-F_-F
+-A=1-H 690,811 295 1,206,626 581,775 56,662 2,536,169
Notes: B

Share premium represents the excess of consideration received
over the par value of shares issued.

Capital redemption reserve represents the amount equal to the par
value of the bought-back shares transferred.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for all
the issued ordinary shares of Lucky Spark Limited (a subsidiary)
and the value of the net underlying assets of the subsidiaries
acquired. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is available for
distribution to the shareholders under certain circumstances.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a
distribution out of contribution surplus if:

(1) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

BRI ESRERITRMHEE
ZE® -
EABEOFEBREESNEEERBRNE
BEZ A

BN R R THE B 1T AR EX Lucky Spark Limited
KB RE) E2HERTLEBRZAAR
frrmEEMKERNEAREEFEEE
ZEE - BEBEBRE-NN\—FRFE(KE
ﬂ%ﬂ) CEETEATARRE 2 BMB R

DIRTFIRE - R - MEBEELEUTER  AAQ
AT AR B MR BT RS TR B S fEH S
K :

(1) TEREHNINERTEINERANTZ
B X

@ HQEZT“EETEI% DPRE[ETE -
EBRTRARBEMGER 2B -
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30. Commitments 30. iz
Capital Commitments EEXxiE
2021 2020
—F--—F —T-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT BT
Contracted but not provided for: ELRT# M R
- Acquisition of investment properties — R EME 54,679 17,641
— Acquisition of fund investments — WEHAERE A TE
included as financial assets at SFAEMEEKAZ
FVTOCI MBEEZEERE 10,920 -
65,599 17,641
All capital commitments are due in the coming twelve months. FIEEREAEHRARKRT_EARNEIH -

31.

Operating Leasing Arrangements

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as

follows:

31.

EEHERH

MEZRTREBEAEMNRTDT:

2021 2020

—g-—% —ETF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT IT BT I

Within one year —FR 344,501 389,294
In the second year £ F 179,739 213,181
In the third year E=4F 56,428 59,556
In the fourth year EJuikeS 14,112 4,166
In the fifth year ERF 14,037 75
Over five years FFEMN E 4,150 —
612,967 666,272
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Operating Leasing Arrangements
(Continued)

The Group leases its investment properties (note 17) under
operating lease arrangements which run for an initial period of
one to six years (2020: one to six years), with an option to
renew the lease terms at the expiry date or at dates as
mutually agreed between the Group and the respective
tenants. The terms of the leases also require the tenants to pay
rental deposits. The turnover-related rental income received
during the year amounted to HK$3,412,000 (2020:
HK$3,109,000).

Financial Guarantee Contracts

As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided guarantees
amounted to approximately HK$90,564,000 (2020:
HK$260,417,000) to banks with respect to mortgage loans
procured by the purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such
guarantees will be released by banks upon delivery of the
properties to the purchasers and completion of the registration
of the mortgage with the relevant mortgage registration
authorities or settlement of the outstanding mortgage loan. In
the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the financial
guarantee is not significant.

31.

32.

SEHERHE

AEERBEEHETHHBERENE
(MEE17) » VA E—E N F(ZE-TF
—ERF) ARERI A AEEES
BMEAAAEFTREZBPER - AOIKXK
MHATEERBABBLHESIES - FREW
EERMAR 2H S WA RSB HES,412,0007T
(ZZE=—Z 4 : #%3,109,0007T) °

BBEREY

RZB—F+-A=+—8 KEEZRNK
SEVEERNE 2 EZBERABITR M
P& (R 4978 90,564,000 (T F : /&
#:260,417,0007T) ° ZEERERWER A
FERWAABIZBEE L H#ENLIRBE
SRR B E M R IZIBE SRR IR TR o
EEZRE UBERIATFEIEITERK -
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33. KAFZHB KRR

Company
2021 2020
—E-—f§ —E-THE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 HBETT BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Non-current assets ERHEE
Interests in subsidiaries NI EINGIP Ea 34 545,000 545,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B A B) 2 k78 2,065,529 2121185
2,610,529 2,666,185
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b & U 78 397 386
Cash and cash equivalents ReELREEEY 323 249
720 635
Current liabilities REERE
Amount due to a subsidiary JERHT B AR Z KA 46,340 45,848
Accrued expenses and other payables JE&T2 3 & E fh FE (50 IB 298 368
Provision for income taxation Frig i E 111 63
46,749 46,279
Net current liabilities BREBEE (46,029) (45,644)
Net assets FEE 2,564,500 2,620,541
EQUITY R
Share capital fi& s 28 28,331 28,331
Reserves Wi 29 2,536,169 2,592,210
Total equity HELSEE 2,564,500 2,620,541
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34. PHBASIZHER
RZE_—FR-_F-_FF+-_A=+—H
ZTXEMBATFEBHOT

34. Interests in Subsidiaries
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation ERTREAEE/ held by the Company Principal activities
AT &H ERARL/ EERE HMEXHE FATFMBERERI TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE el %
2020
S 33
Billion Glory Properties Hong Kong Paid-up capital HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited
EHEXBRAA EiE BRARAEEIT NERE
Bond Rising Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - — 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
RBARREE REREEESITZ REER
Castle Peak Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property
Properties Limited development
FLBRENEBERDR B BERRAERIT NEER
Eternal Bonus Group British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited US$1 each
REERRES RERAEBEZE 1T REER
Fortune Together Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
RBERAR REARARES RERAEEESITL REER
LaK
Golden Relay Company Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - — 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited HK$100,000
SERRAA BiE B R A EH100,0007 MER
Goldwell Property Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Provision of building
Management Limited HK$100,000 management
service
SEMEEEERAR Bk B &R A8 #100,0007T REBFERRYE
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Particulars of nominal

34. RMIBATIZHER(E)

Principal activities

ETEEH

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation BRTRAEE held by the Company
AT &HE ERERL/ EERE HMELHE FATFMBERERIL
Directly Indirectly
H#& &
2020
“Z%F
Grape Trade Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - — 100% 100%
US$1 each
ABERRES RERAEESITL
LRk
Harvest Fortune Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%
k== YN BiE BABRTERIT
Keep New Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%
Limited HK$1,000
RARERRRT Bk B&RAE1,0007T
Lead Properties Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%
BREZBRAA Bk BRERAEEIT
One Storage Management Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%
Company Limited
ZERFRERERDR AR BERRAERIT
Onwell Properties Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%
ZEEXERAT B BABRTEEIT
Power Huge Development Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%
Limited
RRERBRAT B BABRTERIT
Sharp Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - —* 100%
Properties Limited
ERBANERRAR BB BRRAEEIT

Investment holding
REAR
Property investment
NERE
Property
development

NEEE

Property investment
NERE

Mini-storage
by

Property investment

NERE
Property investment
NERSE
Property investment

NERE
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34. RMIBATIZHER(E)

34. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation BRTRAEE held by the Company Principal activities
AT &HE ERERL/ EERE HMELHE FATFMBERERIL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE &
2020
—ZCEZF
Sky Luck (China) Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property investment
HK$10,000
REHRE)ERATF ) BAIRAE 10,0007 NERE
Soundwill (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands 100,001,000 ordinary 100% 100% - —  Investment holding
shares of HK$1 each
ABERRES 100,001,000k R EE REER
BEIT Rk
Soundwill Real Estate British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - — 100% 100%  Investment holding
(China) Limited US$1 each
8B ERE) AR RBARREE RERABEZ 1T REER
A7 L@k
Tang Lung Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property investment
Properties Limited HK$1,000
BRERENEBERAR BiE B AR % #1,0007 NERE
TCP Investment Properties Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property
Limited HK$1,000 development
EE BAIRAEE1,000T NEER
Upper Wealthy Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - — 100% 100%  Property investment
FirBRAF Bk BRERTELEIT NERE
Wise Ease Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - — 100% 100%  Property investment
HK$10,000
HEERAA Bk E#kAE%100007T NERE
World Firm Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$200 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
RERAT 0 E#RAEH2007T NERE
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34. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued) 34. PMEBASIZHEZE(E)
Particulars of nominal
Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation ERTRAEE held by the Company Principal activities
AT ER HMBL/ EERE HREXFE FATMBRRERLL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE &
Year Glory Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - — —** 100%  Property investment
THAERAR Bk BRERAEEIT NERE
KEWILKERMEEE  Mainland China Registered capital of - - 51% 51%  Property
BRAE RMB25,000,000 development
RE R, AMER NEER
AR #25,000,0007C
EESHRHELE Mainland China Registered capital of - - 100% 100%  Property
BRAR" RMB30,000,000 development
HEAM HMER MERRE
AR #30,000,0007T
GETBREARE Mainland China Registered capital of - - 100% 100%  Property
BRAE" RMB23,000,000 development
REAM AR MERR
AR #23,000,0007C
Notes: B 5
* These subsidiaries were established in the Mainland China as * ZEMBRARNFPBEAMK L ABREER
limited liability companies. Al e
o The subsidiaries were disposed of during the year ended 31 > ZENBRREREBEEZE_E_—F+_A=
December 2021. T+T—BHBLEFEALE -
The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the ESRAMAMANBEARIFEZ TES
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and % HEBRRTTR M EREHAXFHA
therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the SEXENEAERBAREBNZEENE
principal subsidiaries which materially affect the results or ALEIE
assets of the Group.
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the AR FRRBEETTAEREES -
end of the year.
No financial information of the non-wholly owned subsidiaries BB AR 2T B ER M EESZEEY
is disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as the BHRERPWE FEEZEIFIEREZRY

non-controlling interests are not material to the Group. AEBMEENEK -
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36.

S AR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ 2 — & ——

A SO A B

Fr-A=1—HIFE

35. FEiEfxE

2021 2020
:#:_ $ = ?

HK$’000 HK$'000

EETR BT T

As at 1 January Rn—HA—H 16,727 14,661

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(E8E), & F (170) 465
Exchange (loss)/gain on translation of BMEBINEBGZIER

foreign operations (E18), W= (81) 1,601

As at 31 December R+—R=+—8H 16,476 16,727

The non-controlling interests of subsidiaries that are not 100%
owned by the Group are considered to be immaterial and

3FEEZIK$@??E7§1OO%¢E¥ZMT%’ATZ§1E
ZRBBERE R TEAN - B S\ FEE

therefore no further details are disclosed. —HFE o

Related Party Transactions 36. FABALRS

The following transactions with related parties were, in the i ERR FTIRFRNEBBMALTETZ

opinion of the Directors, carried out in the ordinary course of RSN B B EBBRFET:

business during the year:

2021 2020
—¥-—f =%
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETR BET T
Short-lease expense and management MARFPEAMEMN 2 FAE
fee expense in respect of office MEZRBEHERS &
premises situated in Guangzhou, EREAX(HE@)
the Mainland China (note (a)) 306 459
Short-lease expense for leasing MER AP A EIMNZ
carparking spaces situated in FEMZEHEERY
Guangzhou, the Mainland China (9 5% (o))
(note (b)) 29 27
Rental income in respect of an office BE—ERIAEDEZ
premise (note (c)) el AFEC) - 100

Notes: B &E

(@ A subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement with (@) ARA—RMBARIE—RAEQF (KRR
a related company, in which the Chairman and an executive AEBR—BRTESHEEDR)FFAE
director of the Company have interests, for leasing a number of Wk Tﬂg%lﬁﬁfi\\qﬂ B At N 2 P EEE
premises situated in Guangzhou, the Mainland China for office MAERSE
purpose.

(b)  For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, a subsidiary of ) BEZE_—FR_ZT_TF+_A=+-—
the Company entered into tenancy agreements with a related BIEFE @ AQF]— %Bﬁ%ﬁjéﬁi e 7
company, in which a close family member of the Chairman and an RRAI(ARRRERZABRR—BHTEEH
executive director of the Company have interests, for leasing two BRIV HE T HEMRNPEA M

(2020: two) carparking spaces situated in Guangzhou, the

Mainland China.

BMzmE(ZE 4 ME) FEACL -
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36. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

37.

Notes: (Continued)

© In previous years, a subsidiary of the Company entered into a
tenancy agreement with a company, in which the Chairman and her
daughters have wholly-owned interest, for leasing an office premise
in Soundwill Plaza for the period of three years commencing from 1
September 2018 and expiring on 31 August 2021 at monthly rental
of HK$50,000. The agreement was early terminated on 29
February 2020. No such rental income in respect of the office
premise during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Key management personnel compensation:

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BBt T35 (&)

ffsE: (&)

© BEFE  ARA—RKHWEBARE—RAA
(RAREFERELRE2EHAER) ]
EH#E BT N\FLA—RE-_T——
FNA=+—HBHA AR E¥E50,000tHE S
BHEFEL—EARAENE  BH=F - ZH
HER-_E-TE_A-+NABRSERIE-H
EE_—E+-A=+—HIEE &P
AEMERESS LOABSKA -

TEEREABHMN:

2021 2020

—E-—% BB

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T BT T

Basic salaries and other benefits EAF e RHMmEH 39,495 41,585
Pension costs — defined contribution BRIKE A — EREMH K

plans &l 90 72

39,585 41,657

Assets Classified as Held for Sale

On 11 November 2021, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose an investment property at consideration of
HK$29,000,000, with the direct disposal expenses of
HK$400,000. As at 31 December 2021, an initial deposit of
HK$1,500,000 was received by the Group from the purchaser
and included in the consolidated statement of financial position
under “trade and other payables”. The disposal was completed
on 15 March 2022. As at 31 December 2021, the assets and
liabilities related to a wholly-owned subsidiary, King Huge
Enterprises Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively the “King
Huge Group”) were disposed to another independent third
party at a consideration of HK$47,300,000, with the direct
disposal expenses of HK$600,000. The disposal of subsidiary
is investment holding company which in turn holds an
investment property located in Hong Kong. The disposal of the
subsidiary is expected to complete in March 2022.

37. NHEAREZEE

R-ZT——F+—A+—H AEFEE—F
BUYE=FFVEEHEALE—@IERE
Y KR8 AB%29,0000007T HELE
X &% ¥400,0000T e RZZE=—F+=
A=+—H8 ZAEEHEFRIEHIZE
75 #1,500,0007T * WET AR E B 15k R &
PHESREMEMNEIFR - ZBERE
ERZZE__F=ZA+HATK - R=_ZT=
—F+-_A=t—HB A —&ZBILF=
FHEREEHBAREINLEEGRAR
MEMBAR(ABIEICEEE])EH
ZEERAE - REARBY47300,0007T -
HEHERK AB600,0005T - FTEEZ
MEBARABKREAZBRAR  BHEURES
ZIEME - HHZMBAR ZHEBR
B _FZAEK-
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37. Assets Classified as Held for Sale 37. PEAGEZEE(E)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2020, the assets and liabilities related to R-E-ZTF+A+RH —E_FF+—
certain subsidiaries, namely Easy Loyal International Limited A+=ZBR=ZZ=ZF+—A+NLAH5H
(“Easy Loyal”), Well Huge Corporation Limited (“Well Huge”), ETEBYF=F7%FEEWZUARENRE
Fast Rich Enterprise Limited (“Fast Rich”) and Manage 7% #16,268,0007T 4 #13,333,0007T * 4
International Limited (“Manage International”), whole-owned #%17,088,0007T K /& #17,098,0007T ) & IIE
subsidiaries of the Group (collectively named as “Disposal KREEAERAR(TERK])  aFEERRA
Subsidiaries”), have been presented as held for sale following (&%) BELEERARTEREDR
the signing of sale and purchase agreements with certain ERERARAR(ERERENAREER
independent third parties to dispose of Disposal Subsidiaries MNEENRBRR B AILEWBAR]
on 16 October 2020, 12 November 2020 and 19 November % HEMBRARAIZEERBEBEERZE
2020 respectively with cash consideration of HK$16,268,000, TEFE+-_A=1+—HENAFE HE
HK$13,333,000, HK$17,088,000 and HK$17,098,000 MEBEBARAKREERAR  HBEUNRES
respectively. The Disposal Subsidiaries are investment holding WY RZE_FF+-_A=+—H 'K
companies which in turn holds properties located in Hong SEHNE 5 W R % 8 5% %9,568,000
Kong. As at 31 December 2020, total deposits of T Wt AR MBRAKRTFHESRE
HK$9,568,000 were received by the Group from the ft FEFFRIE AR o
purchasers and included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under “trade and other payables”.
In accordance with HKFRS 5, the assets relating to the RERESUBEHREENEST EEHER
disposal of investment properties/subsidiaries have been BEWME/WBRARZEEDRERSMEK
classified as held for sale in the consolidated statement of MNESPBRFE BRLELIFFTBER
financial position. The disposals do not constitute a R EEME AW EKNERIELEE
discontinued operation as it does not represent a major line of LETE o
business or geographical area of operation.
2021 2020
—E=—% —ETTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
w5 BT
Investment properties "EYE 75,300 63,787
Total assets classified as held for sale DHEAFEZBEE 75,300 63,787
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended
31 December 2021
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
disposed 9 subsidiaries to independent third parties at
aggregate consideration of HK$180,905,000, direct expenses
in relation to the disposals of HK$10,515,000 and resulted in
gain of disposal of HK$1,864,000. The following detailed the
key disposals of subsidiaries during the year:

@)

On 12 November 2020, the Group entered into an
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Well Huge, to an
independent third party at an aggregate consideration of
HK$13,333,000. The disposal of Well Huge was

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

38. HEKBAT
R8&E-F-_—F+=-H=+—HL
FEHEMBAT
BT —F+-_A=+T—HILFE 'K
SERABYE=-FHEREMBLAR - 21
{8 /478 #180,005,0007T AL E H#E
79 S% 478 #10,515,0007T » #5k H E UL 2575
#1,864,0007C °c AT FHIIFARE 2 EE
= INCIE

@ RZZE-ZTEF+—A+=H Xx5H
SN BEA—RBYEZHERE
HEAR R 22 E - BREB
75 #13,333,0007T ° HmHZ 2 HEBE R
T —F—ANAREK > HZHFNE

completed on 4 January 2021. The net assets of Well ERBZFEEMAT
Huge at the date of disposal were as follows:
HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment properties classified as assets classified D EATEZEEZ
as held for sale BEYE 13,333
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries XRIEE NG E S (893)
12,440
Loan assignment B 893
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Well Huge BB EHFFZ2 HERX 1,161
Loss on disposal of Well Huge HEERZEE (1,161)
13,333
Total consideration @wRE
— satisfied by cash — UReFH 13,333
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Well Huge HESRKELE Y
e RAFRR
Consideration received 2R E 13,333
Direct expenses HEAX (1,161)

12,172
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended
31 December 2021 (Continued)

(b)

On 16 October 2020, the Group entered into an
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Easy Loyal, to an
independent third party at an aggregate consideration of
HK$16,268,000. The disposal of Easy Loyal was

E-F——

A SO A B

Fr-A=1—HIFE

. HEMBASE (&)
RBEEZFZ—F+= E]E+— Hi

FEHEMBAE(E

by WH=ZZ== §¢+ﬁ+/\5 AREBEET

VA E AR RaE=E AV

FE=ZNHEREM

BARERZ Z2EE  ARELS
#16,268,0007T ° B 7 HEE R =
T——F_A+H=EK - JERALE

completed on 10 February 2021. The net assets of Easy BBz FEEMT:
Loyal at the date of disposal were as follows:
HK$'000
ok
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment properties classified as assets classified DB AFEZEEZ
as held for sale BREWME 16,268
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERRERWEB AR RE (1,146)
15,122
Loan assignment EReEE 1,146
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Easy Loyal AR HEIER 2 BERX 1,751
Loss on disposal of Easy Loyal HEIER B8 (1,751)
16,268
Total consideration BwRE
— satisfied by cash — UReZH 16,268
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Easy Loyal HEIBRFESE 2
e RN FRE
Consideration received 2R E 16,268
Direct expenses HEAX (1,751)

14,517
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) 38. HEKMBAT(E)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended RBE-_F-—%1+= ﬁ =+—H1
31 December 2021 (Continued) FEHERBAT(E
© On 19 November 2020, the Group entered into an © RZEZZF+-— )EJWLjLE g SE]
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a SN ER BB E=AEERE
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Manage International, MEAREREHE 2 AE - B
to an independent third party at an aggregate {8 &7 %17,008,0007T - BEEBE 2
consideration of HK$17,098,000. The disposal of HEERZZE—F-_A+IB%EMX °
Manage International was completed on 19 February EEEEAHNEASZFEENT

2021. The net assets of Manage International at the date
of disposal were as follows:

HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment properties classified as assets classified D EAFTEZEE
as held for sale REWMHE 17,098
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ANIEEI NGRS (1,118)
15,980
Loan assignment B 1,118
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of FRLEEEBRBR  EERY
Manage International 1,463
Loss on disposal of Manage International HEERBEER B (1,463
17,098
Total consideration HRE
— satisfied by cash — UIR & XA 17,098
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Manage HEEEERRESE 2
International ReRANFHE
Consideration received BRRE 17,098
Direct expenses BERX (1,463)

15,635
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended
31 December 2021 (Continued)

(@

On 19 November 2020, the Group entered into an
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Fast Rich, to an
independent third party at an aggregate consideration of
HK$17,088,000. The disposal of Fast Rich was

E-F——

A SO A B

Fr-A=1—HIFE

. HEMBASE (&)
RBEEZFZ—F+= E]E+— Hi

FEHEMBAE(E

d RKRZZE_ZTF+-— HHLE FAREE
RV RA—RBYE = AHERE
MEAREEZZPBRE  BRER
75 #17,088,0007C - B ZHEE R
ZE—FZA+NBEK - FEER

completed on 19 February 2021. The net assets of Fast HEBBRZFEENT
Rich at the date of disposal were as follows:
HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment properties classified as assets classified DB AFEZEEZ
as held for sale BREWME 17,088
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERRERWNEARRE (1,399)
15,689
Loan assignment EReEE 1,399
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Fast Rich FHLEREC EERY 1,462
Loss on disposal of Fast Rich HERE2EIE (1,462)
17,088
Total consideration BwRE
— satisfied by cash — UReZH 17,088
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Fast Rich HEREREEZ
e RN FRE
Consideration received 2R E 17,088
Direct expenses HEAX (1,462)

15,626
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended
31 December 2021 (Continued)

©)

On 28 April 2021, Able Best International Investment
Limited (“Able Best”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into a share exchange agreement (the
“Share Exchange Agreement”) with inter alia Mr. Tang
Shing Bor (“the Deceased”), pursuant to which (i) Able
Best conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued
share capital of and the shareholder’s loan owing by
Mainway Holdings Limited (“Mainway Holdings”) at the
consideration of HK$135 million, subject to adjustments
and (i) Able Best conditionally agreed to sell and transfer
the entire issued share capital of and the shareholder’s
loan owing by Year Glory Limited (“Year Glory”) to a
company beneficially owned by the Deceased at the
consideration of HK$70 million, subject to adjustments.
Mainway Holdings was the owner of a number of
industrial property units located in Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong (the “Properties”) while Year Glory
was the owner of a number of residential property units
in Kowloon City, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Deceased
passed away before the agreed completion date of the
Share Exchange Agreement.

On 24 August 2021, Able Best, the joint administrators of
the estate of the Deceased (the “Joint Administrators”)
and others entered into a termination deed to terminate
the Share Exchange Agreement. On the same date and
in lieu of the Sale Exchange Agreement, Master Green
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into a property sale and purchase agreement
with Mainway Holdings to acquire the Properties from it
at the consideration of HK$130 million while Able Best
and other parties entered into a share sale and purchase
agreement to sell and transfer the entire issued share
capital of and the shareholder’s loan owing by Year Glory
at the consideration of HK$70 million (the “Disposal”),
subject to adjustments, to entity nominated by the Joint
Administrators.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

38. HEMBAE (&)
R8EE—_FE-_—F+=-A=+—H1L
FEHEMBEAT (&)

©)

RZEBE_—FWA=-+N\H  ARF
Z & & M B A 7 Able Best
International Investment Limited ([Able
Best)) 82 (K 8 3F) B Ak K 5L £ (B
HWE DRI R DR B (R H Rk
s ]) 3 Utk 0 ()Able Best & & 4+ [F
EWEENEEBRERAT(EF
Bz E2EEBETRARMRE 2B
R E - R {E RS 135000,0007T
(AT 73 %) : X (i)Able BestH & 1 [A
EMENEEREA A ARINEE
EILBARAR(TEL 2 2 HE %
TRARFIRBZEREER  REA
75 #70,000,0007T (A] F 3 &) - & F
BEBZBANEBHAELR T
EMEBMN(ZEWED TERER
ZEMRBEBNLENENR ZEEY
EEBAM - EMEBRROZ G ZE 2
ExEKBEB At -

R-ZZE-_—FAN 8 =-+WMAE  Able
Best * EiiEEE 2 EREE AL
EEEADREMB RIS ARIERE -
AR IERR D R ek - REBRIES
R E o BR - BRERAF]
(ARRIZE2EWBAR)BEF BT
YUWEBEEHE EREBE
130,000,0007T [A] & F) B W & 72 £ 1)
% i Able Best & H b 5 IR [E BF 5] 37 A%
MEEHDZ UEREBEE
70,000,0007¢ (A] T # £ ) M H [ & 12
AEECEBEENREZTTH 22
BEITRARAREGZBRRERER(L
EEHE]) -
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended
31 December 2021 (Continued)

©)

(Continued)
Completion of the purchase of the Properties and the
Disposal took place on 28 September 2021.

Details of above transactions are disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated on 28 April 2021,
20 May 2021, 5 July 2021, 9 August 2021, 20 August
2021, 24 August 2021 and 28 September 2021.

The net assets of Year Glory at the date of disposal were
as follows:

2-FC

A SO A B

—FF—A=F—HIFE

38. HEMBAE (&)
R8&E-—F-_—F+=-A=+—HL
FEHEMBAS(E)

©) (&)

BEZSEMENMHEEHEER -2
—FRAZT/\BZEMK -

P RGZFBERRAARBE A=
T —FMA=-Z+NBA -ZZT=—F

AA=1+H -

—E—Ft+ARH =

T-—FNAABE —E-—FN\A
—+B ZE_—FN\A-tHEBEX
—E—FAAZtTNBZAER -

TEREERHZFEENT

HK$'000
AT
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment properties "EME 66,640
Deferred tax IR IR (970)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERNRZRZNB AT RIE (46,769)
18,901
Loan assignment BEReEE 46,769
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Year Glory HBREETH 2 EERX 1,424
Gain on disposal of Year Glory o & T B2 W E 2,906
70,000
Total consideration BRE
— satisfied by cash — URe M 70,000
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Year Glory HETEREEZ
e RN FRE
Consideration received 2R E 70,000
Direct expenses BEERY (1,424)

68,576
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended
31 December 2021 (Continued)

®

On 25 May 2021, the Group entered into an agreement to
dispose of the entire equity interest in a wholly-owned
subsidiary, namely Famous Point Enterprise Limited
(“Famous Point”), to an independent third party at an
aggregate consideration of HK$17,488,000. The disposal
of Famous Point was completed on 23 August 2021. The

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

38. HEKMBAT(E)
RBE-_F-_—+-A=+—HL
FEHEMBAS(E)

H WRZE_—FHEA-FTFHA £5H
AV EA—EBYE=FHEE2E
MBARMALLEERAR (ML)
ZEBBE BREABE
17,488,0007T - A& HEER=-F
T—ENAZTZHERK - AR

net assets of Famous Point at the date of disposal were EHHZFEENT
as follows:
HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment property "EME 13,397
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENRERWEARRE (1,017)
12,380
Loan assignment B 1,017
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Famous ERrEmEcBEERY
Point 95
Gain on disposal of Famous Point HERE 2R 3,996
17,488
Total consideration BRAE
— satisfied by cash — UReF M 17,488
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Famous Point & [A| 82 &= 4 ~
e RN FRE
Consideration received 2R E 17,488
Direct expenses BEERY (95)

17,393
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended
31 December 2021 (Continued)

(@)

On 24 June 2021, the Group entered into an agreement
to dispose of the entire equity interest in a wholly-owned
subsidiary, namely Grand Profit Creation Limited (“Grand
Profit”), to an independent third party at an aggregate
consideration of HK$17,800,000. The disposal of Grand
Profit was completed on 30 July 2021. The net assets of

38. HEKMBAT(E)
R8&E-F-_—F+=-HA=+—HL
FEHEMBAS(E)

@ RZTE-_—FAZ-+WMB: ' A£H
AR RBYE = AHRERE
MEBAREFAIZERAR (VSR ])
ZEEHBE BREARBE
17,800,0007C ° & F  HEERZF
T—FLA=THEER  EFNREE

Grand Profit at the date of disposal were as follows: AEiZ FEEMT
HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment property "EME 16,273
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENRERWEARRE (1,239)
15,034
Loan assignment B 1,239
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Grand Profit AL EEF 2 HEEMAX 2,118
Loss on disposal of Grand Profit HEER BB (591)
17,800
Total consideration BwRE
— satisfied by cash — UReZH 17,800
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Grand Profit ~ H& & FIBEL 2
e RN FRE
Consideration received 2R E 17,800
Direct expenses HEAX (2,118)

15,682
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended
31 December 2021 (Continued)

(h)

On 1 September 2021, the Group entered into an
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Wealth Easy
Corporation Limited (“Wealth Easy”), to an independent
third party at an aggregate consideration of
HK$11,750,000. The disposal of Wealth Easy was

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

38. HEKMBAT(E)
NRB8&E=-F=-—F+= HE+—E¢
FEHEMBAT(E
h R-ZE-_—FhA— E'$%Eﬂz

WER—E2BYLE=AHE2ENE
AAEREEXERAR(ERDZ2
%&% @ KB &% %11,750,000

cJERZBEER T —F 1A
_+hamﬂ BRI EBE 2 %

completed on 29 October 2021. The net assets of BEMT:
Wealth Easy at the date of disposal were as follows:
HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment property "EME 9,400
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENRERWEARRE (985)
8,415
Loan assignment Bz 985
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Wealth Easy BRETEIEE 2 HEFX 1,034
Gain on disposal of Wealth Easy & B B 2 W s 1,316
11,750
Total consideration BwRE
— satisfied by cash — UReZH 11,750
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Wealth Easy ~ H&IBERERKEL 2
RERANFRE
Consideration received 2R E 11,750
Direct expenses HEAX (1,034)

10,716
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38. HHEMELAE (&)

Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended RBE-_FT-FF+-H=+—HL
31 December 2020 FEHERBAT
() On 19 July 2018, the Group entered into an agreement to i) RZE—NFELtAT+NLB xXEEFT

dispose of the entire equity interest in Lucky Way with
details disclosed in note 37. The disposal of Lucky Way
Group was completed on 5 February 2020. The net

U ERAE s 2 ERE - FER
MIFEQ7ik %% - RASEZHEERZ
T-_EF_ARAHATEK - BAEER

assets of Lucky Way Group at the date of disposal were HEBHRZFEENT
as follows:
HK$'000
BT
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment properties (note a) ‘EYE (M iEa) 420,000
Deferred tax PR ET IR (229)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FENRZN B AR RIE (139,447)
280,324
Loan assignment Bz 139,447
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of RN ERASB  EERY
Lucky Way Group 45,825
Gain on disposal of Lucky Way Group TEREEE 2 K= 2,039
467,635
Total consideration HRE
— satisfied by cash — MR 312,353
— satisfied by repayment of loan (note b) — EEE R (M iEb) 155,282

467,635
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended
31 December 2020 (Continued)

(0

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

38. HEMEAS (&)
RBE-FT-_FTF+-A=+—-HL
4 i U B BB 4 5 ()

(Continued) 0] (%)
HK$'000
BT
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Lucky Way HERBSEBEEELE 2R ESRA
Group: (note ¢) FEE: (FYsEe)
Total consideration received up to 31 December HE-_Z-_ZTF+_A=+—HL
2020 Bl aRE 312,353
Consideration received in prior years BEFEEKRRE (57,353)
Direct expenses BEERY (25,825)
229,175

Notes: B 3E :

(@) Investment properties which are classified as held for sale as (@)  E_T-NF+=ZA=+—8"
at 31 December 2019 have a historical cost of PHEABERFENREVENE
HK$139,002,000 and aggregated fair value gain K AN B B #139,002,0007T ¢
HK$280,998,000 up to the date of disposal. EHEAHNARTFERS BB

280,998,0007T °

(o) The Group granted short-term loan facilities of ) AEEMEFREEHAERRERE
HK$155,282,000 to the Borrowers to enable the completion 155,282,000 T AE TR L ERAEE
of the disposal of Lucky Way Group (and details thereof are (ZHBHIWRBHPA-ZZ_TF=
set out in the announcement dated 5 February 2020). As at AREHAE) RZZT=TF+=A
31 December 2020, upon the settlement of HK$31,170,000 =+—H " &5 E%%31,170,0007T
and the addition in interest receivable of HK$18,311,000, the Je 38 N fE U A 8. 5 #618,311,000 7T 44
gross carrying amount of Unsecured Loan is EEPERNEEREARBE
HK$142,423,000. While the Borrowers did not repay the 142,423,0007T © a7 I ARIAREE K
Unsecured Loan based on the repayment schedule. RHEXESEEFRER EBERER
HK$45,000,000 of the Unsecured Loan has already been # ) 7% 545,000,000 E R =Z=F
past due since 4 May 2020 and remaining portion of the FRAMBEE - MEEKBERNH
Unsecured Loan has also been past due subsequent to the THHATPERREBEAGEE - HE
reporting date. In view of this, the Directors considered that Rt EERAZERFERELR
this Unsecured Loan have already credit-impaired and thus EERE Bt BE=ZT=-TF+
impairment loss on the Unsecured Loan of HK$142,423,000 ZA=ZTHILEEE REZHERS
is recognised to profit or loss during the year ended 31 #5142,423,0007T 2 SR E FORE E
December 2020. 8o

© Approximately HK$45,825,000 has been accrued as direct © AEEREEREEBD AL B

expenses in relation to the disposal of Lucky Way Group. As
at 31 December 2020, the Group paid approximately
HK$25,825,000 and the remaining direct expenses of
approximately HK$20,000,000 have been included under
“Trade and other payables” in the consolidated statement of

financial position as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

45,825,000 CEBEEZERY - RZZ
—EF+-A=+—RH FA£EEEX
5 49 7% #£25,825,0007T * MR ZZT =
—FR_EFE-_FTF+-_A=1+—H#%
™ B # 7 X /8 #20,000,0007T B &t A
REMBARRARANE S R H A
NHBIBT -
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) . HEMBAS(E)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended RBE-_F-FF+= Fl =+-—81

31 December 2020 (Continued) FEHERBAT(E
()  On 2 November 2020, the Group entered into an () RZZEZZF+-— )EJ_El FAREEET

agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Lucky Express
Creation Limited (“Lucky Express”), to an independent
third party at an aggregate consideration of
HK$12,090,000. The disposal of Lucky Express was

S 1% 0 AR AR B B #12,090,0007T
K—RE2ENBARRRBAIZEARA
ﬁ(ﬁ%ﬁj)ﬂ’]%ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁj’i%—%ﬁ
VE=H  BBHNHEER T -F
¢+_ﬂ_+:ElmﬁJZ REERE -

completed on 23 December 2020. The net assets of RERFEENT
Lucky Express at the date of disposal were as follows:
HK$'000
PEWE T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment property "EYEE 10,000
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERERWEB AR RIE (785)
9,215
Loan assignment EREE 785
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of ﬁ ALERBZEERX
Lucky Express 1,172
Gain on disposal of Lucky Express HERB 2z 918
12,090
Total consideration BwRE
— satisfied by cash — UREZM 12,090
HK$'000
BT T
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Lucky HERBREEZ
Express ReRANFRE
Consideration received B E 12,090
Direct expenses BHERY (1172

10,918
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended
31 December 2020 (Continued)

(k) On 4 November 2020, the Group entered into an
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Total Asset
International Limited (“Total Assets”), to an independent
third party at an aggregate consideration of
HK$13,226,000. The disposal of Total Assets was
completed on 28 December 2020. The net assets of

Total Assets at the date of disposal were as follows:

38. HHEMEBAE (&)

REBEEZF-FTF+Z FIE+—EI.IJ:

FEHEMBAE(E

K R-TE-TBFt+-— HEEI REBET
S o AR B  #13,226,0007T
K—RE2EMNBARMEBRBEARA

AlREDHNE

ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁj%%—%ﬁ

YE=T  mENBEER-_Z=F
FH_AZTN\BZEX - REERH

MBERFEEMNT

HK$’000
ok e
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment property KEME 10,800
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries BN RRWN B AR KIE (662)
10,138
Loan assignment Bz 662
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of ﬁ AHEREZHEERX
Total Assets 1,163
Gain on disposal of Total Assets HEME 2l &= 1,263
13,226
Total consideration BRE
— satisfied by cash — URE I 13,226
HK$’000
BT
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Total Assets HEMEBERE L ~
BE&mAFEE
Consideration received B E 13 226
Direct expenses BHERY (1,163)

12,063
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended
31 December 2020 (Continued)

0] On 29 October 2020, the Group entered into an
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a HIRVAITE:
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Fast View Creation
Limited (“Fast View”), to an independent third party at an
aggregate consideration of HK$16,580,000. The BUE=T o
disposal of Fast View was completed on 23 December
2020. The net assets of Fast View at the date of disposal

were as follows:

E-F——

A SO A B

Fr-A=1—HIFE

. HEMBASE (&)
RBEEZEZF-FF+Z FIE+—EIJJ:

FEHEMBAE(E

() E’\\_g_gﬁJrﬂ_JrhEl AR H

- A#E R (B 7 16,580,000

TR —REEMNBARAREZEAR

’A‘T(F‘ﬂ%J)E’J’\

ﬁﬁ%ﬁéﬂj%%—%
SHHEE R

$$+_H_+:Emﬁ mﬁ%a
PEEEMT

HK$’000
ok e
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment property WEYHE 14,000
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ANIGEY NGRS (1,236)
12,764
Loan assignment Bz 1,236
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Fast View HBEEEAE 2 EHEHAE 1,431
Gain on disposal of Fast View HENS 7 1,149
16,580
Total consideration BRE
— satisfied by cash — UReZNM 16,580
HK$'000
BT
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Fast View  HERSHELE Z
BE&mAFEE
Consideration received BURE 16,580
Direct expenses BEEMRAX (1,431)

15,149
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38. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries during year ended
31 December 2020 (Continued)

(m)  On 3 November 2020, the Group entered into an
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Huge Success
Creation Limited (“Huge Success”), to an independent
third party at an aggregate consideration of
HK$13,380,000. The disposal of Huge Success was
completed on 28 December 2020. The net assets of
Huge Success at the date of disposal were as follows:

38. HHEMELAE (&)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

R8E-—F-_FF+=-H=+—H1I

FEHEMBAEE)

m M-F_FTFE+—-A=8 A&KHEF]
S 0 A #2 B B %13,380,0007T
K—RE2EMBARERAZEARA
AERDNEIBRELET 2

NEZF HEMEEENR T =T

FH-AZTN\B5EK - REERH -

SR EFEEMNT

HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment property WEYHE 9,800
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENRRWN B AR KIE (783)
9,017
Loan assignment Bz 783
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of EBRLEARECEERY
Huge Success 1,171
Gain on disposal of Huge Success eI 2 s 2,409
13,380
Total consideration wmRE
— satisfied by cash — URE I 13,380
HK$'000
BT
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Huge HEEIIFEE
Success ReRAFRE
Consideration received B (E 13,380
Direct expenses BHERY (1,171)

12,209
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39. Financial Instruments 39.
39.1 Summary of Financial Assets and Liabilities
by Category
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities as recognised at the reporting dates are

MMBIA

391 REMEI P ZHBEEREEM
E:2
REE 2 B A E R AR S E
RRZEABABEDT :

categorised as follows:

2021 2020
—BC-—F —E_FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at amortised BB P AR 2 B BB
cost
— Trade receivables, net — B RRIEFEE 30,039 38,740
— Other receivables and — EthEl R IE RET &
deposits, net FRE 20,570 36,466
— Loan receivables — EWRER 21,720 24,636
— Restricted bank deposits — ZRAIBITFER 16,110 64,082
— Short-term bank deposits — RHRITER 251,181 425,668
— Cash and cash equivalents —ReEREEEYD 885,358 601,806
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRE 2
BE 2,815 63,008
Financial assets at FVTOCI EAVEFAEMET
WAZBBEE 28,605 —
1,256,398 1,254,406
Financial liabilities MBasE
At amortised cost TZ A B K
— Trade payables — B ENRIEB (17,405) (11,219)
— Accrued expenses and — B ERRAMENIE
other payables (501,856) (585,834)
— Borrowings, secured — BB 5EHF (1,871,501) (1,851,998)
(2,390,762) (2,449,051)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at reporting date.

RBEBH » ARBREHKR AT R
ZHBEERABZREEEEAT

BEYBEAER -
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)

39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk (foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk) in the normal course of business.
However, the Directors meet periodically to analyse and
formulate measures to manage the Group’s exposure to
the market risk.

Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies
on its risk management. As the Group’s exposure to the
market risk is kept to a minimum level, the Group has not
used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging
purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes. The most
significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed
to are described below.

(a) Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the
fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group is
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on its
variable-rate interest bearing borrowings,
loan receivables, restricted bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. The Group
is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
on fixed-rate short-term bank deposits. The
Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the Group
closely monitors its loan portfolio and
compares the interest rates under loan
agreements with existing banks against new
offers on borrowing rates from different
banks in the loan re-financing and
negotiation process.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
HIBOR arising from the Group’s variable
interest rate instruments.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

30. MBI R(E)

302 BB EEBHERBR
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MR REKE - BAREEY ERA
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A REBIW BB RBITITERE
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EAMHRAREIMAT -

(a) 5 BE
0 FEmEE
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L%ﬁ TIE KM EH R
EW?H“°$EIEM
I 8 ) R IR
ﬁ’$EHEWE%ﬁT
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TFRET I ER M ZE A
ﬂ+ATﬂﬁﬂhTZ%
EEEMNEERLR -
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REREPREAREEF
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

()

Interest rate risk (Continued)

A fundamental reform of major interest rate
benchmarks is being undertaken globally,
including the replacement of some interbank
offered rates (“IBORs”) with alternative nearly
risk-free rates. Details of the impacts on the
Group’s risk management strategy arising
from the interest rate benchmark reform and
the progress towards implementation of
alternative benchmark interest rates are set
out under “interest rate benchmark reform”
in this note.

The policies to manage interest rate risk
have been followed by the Group since prior
year are considered to be effective.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the reporting date and had
been applied to variable-rate financial
instruments at that date. 25 basis points
increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

The management considered that the
Group’s exposure to future cash flow risk on
variable-rate cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits and bank deposits
at escrow account as a result of the
changes of market interest rate is
insignificant and thus they are not included
in the sensitivity analysis.

39. MBI R(&A)
39.2 B B3 L IR i 2 B B R B 3K ()

(a) W5 E (&)

()

T 2 iz (48

TBMREE L RANNE
EERIETT - BRNREED
T b M R B RTT
R %K E(|RTRER
Bl BRANRELERE
BAKEEREERIRE
ErRERBRAEERNR
ZEMER  FHEHRA
BYRERO[ A REAEDRE | o

AEBBEEFRECKRBE
BRXERER  BA
AR R BB

T 5 a0 B JB T
BURE DT TR F R R
HERAHELESEGME
E WEANRZBEZZE
AR FETE o o5(8E2h
IR ERBY R
AEAREE B 2T E o R
HE-_Z-_TF+-A=
+—HIEFEEABRE
EEEDHT -

EEERS  AREARK
DRI T 35 1) 2= S &)y 1 3% 8.
RekBRE2EEY XR
HIERTTER R R ERP
ZBTERAH ZRER
ERRYTEAK - Fitd
RAERESREIMNA -
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

()

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)
As at 31 December 2021, it is estimated that
a general increase of 25 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variable held
constant, would increase the Group’s loss
after tax and decrease the retained profits
by approximately HK$3,861,000 (2020:
increase the Group’s loss after tax and
decrease the retained profits by
approximately HK$3,815,000). There is no
impact on other components of
consolidated equity in response to the
general increase in interest rates. A
decrease of 25 basis points in interest rate
would have had the equal but opposite
effect on the above financial instruments to
the amounts shown above, on the basis that
all other variables remain constant. The
sensitivity results are mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate loan receivables and
borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group mainly
operates and invests in Hong Kong and the
Mainland China. Despite the Group has
certain financial assets at FVTOCI
denominated in US Dollars (“US$”),no any
significant movements in the HK$/US$
exchange rate is expected as HKS$ is
pegged to US$. No foreign currency risk has
been identified for other financial
instruments as they were denominated in the
same currency as the functional currencies
of the group entities to which these
transactions relate.

39. M?%I'E'(n‘ﬁ
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30.2 HHEMEEBFERBK(E)

(a

45 g (&)

()

(i)

T )7 B ()

Tl 5 40 5% J& 7 (FE)
RZEBZ—F+ZA=+
—B - EREEMmAE
RERBZERT  Hat
F R B B8 38 N o5 H 2
A8 I AR EEBR TR AZ A5 1B
KO 4R B3 F 49 7 s
3,861,0007c(= & = =
F AN EE R E
B DR B m B 4 7
3,815,0007T) | & & g8
WMﬁFA%EZEM@
BE DA e & F“%
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ERBURAARIZE
EER 2 EEEER -
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(a

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Other price risk
The Group is exposed to other price risk
arising from changes in fair value of
structure bank deposits and fund
investments which carried at FVTPL and
FVTOCI respectively.

No sensitivity analysis an other price risk is
presented for the financial assets at FVTPL
and FVTOCI as the Directors consider a
reasonable possible change to the fair value
of the financial assets at FVTPL and FVTOCI
will not have a significant effect to the
Group’s profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the maximum
exposure to credit risk, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees issued by the Group arising from the
carrying amount of respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the amount of financial
guarantees disclosed in note 32.

Trade receivables

Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. The Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality at new
customer acceptance. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 on trade receivables individually.

A SO A B

—F+ A=+ —HIFE

39 Ej ?% I 'E' (n‘ﬁ
V2 MBRAKREEBERB K (E
(a) 456 R (&)
(i) A AE 1
REBERD BIIE A FE
ABH IR A FEFAR
b 2 E U AT AR 2 A
RITER &%i&éZQ
B2 B) i T H B
R B o

HREFR AR A FER
Az MR FEFAE
fEmBAZMBEELZ
AFEZABETEESHT
SHARERR &H@%
ARAELEATE -
%I%ﬁﬁ@?ﬁﬁkﬁ
s ERAFEFAREGE
ERAZ B BEEEZIH
fERERZBEED
M e

(b) EEE MR EFE
KRB —FR-_F_FF+—
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Review of past due receivables is
conducted by the Group bi-weekly. Normally,
other than those property leasing rental
receivables which are secured by rental deposits,
the Group does not obtain collateral from other
customers.

Loan receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Directors
have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, interest rate offered
to customers and collaterals received. Monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under 12-month ECL model on
balances individually.

The Directors estimate the estimated loss rates of
loan receivables (other than the Unsecured Loan)
based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors as well as the fair value
of the collateral pledged by the customers to the
loan receivables. Based on assessment by the
Directors, aside from those loan receivables
credit-impaired in prior year, the loss given default
is low in view of the fair value of the collaterals and
the Directors considers the 12-month ECL for
other loan receivables is insignificant as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Other receivables and deposits

Management of the Group performs individual
credit evaluations on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits over a certain amount
and collective assessment on the recoverability of
remaining other receivables and deposits based
on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The management of
the Group believes that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of
other receivables and deposits.

Restricted bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents

The credit risk on restricted bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents of the Group is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions
with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies and no history of default in
the past. No loss allowance provision for restricted
bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents was recognised upon
application of HKFRS 9. The Group has limited
exposure to any single financial institution.

Other than structured bank deposits with a bank,
the Group does not have any significant
concentration of credit risk.

39. BB IARGE)
392 MBEEAREEEERBK (&)
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued) 30. MBI R(E)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and 302 HHEEMREEEERBE (&)
Policies (Continued)
(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (b) EEEEEREFFGE)
(Continued)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading NEE 2 AEE B R B AR RIFT
assessment comprises the following categories: B AT 28 B 4B X
Internal credit Other financial
rating Description Trade receivables assets/other items
HithMA IS EE Hith
PMEBEETFR R ESEWRIE I5H
Low risk The counterparty has a low Lifetime ECL — not 12-months ECL
risk default and does not credit-impaired
have any past-due amounts
1K = B2 HFRzENRARRBE ¥ CHRAHAEHREEEE 1REARBEEERE
B fo] 80 EA 5K 0B — BEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after  Lifetime ECL — not 12-months ECL
due dates but usually settle credit-impaired
after due date
BER2E EBALSEIHAERER - CHRAHEHREEEE 1REABBEEER
BETEIPEEEE — BEERE
Doubtful There have been significant Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL — not
increase in credit risk since credit-impaired credit-impaired

initial recognition through
information developed
internally or external

resources

* fR FRANIELSINBRIR ERHAEREEEE CRREHEEEBR
B¥ - FERRBVLE — EBEERE — BIEERE
RUARE A E L

Loss There is evidence indicating Lifetime ECL — credit-  Lifetime ECL — credit-
the asset is credit-impaired impaired impaired

&8 ERBRTEELBREER ERPEBEEER ERNRUEEER
BE — AEERE — BEERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating Amount is written off Amount is written off

that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
i 85 EEBRBTNEBABARE MERIE i 85 5K IR
s NEE - B RSB &
BEERAWEZBHE
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The tables below details the credit risk exposures
of the Group’s financial assets, which are subject
to ECL assessment:

39. I R(E)
02 BRAKEEBBERBK(E)

(b)

TRANAEEARZAHIE
EERFBZUBEEZREE

[ B Wi O

S AR AT

15 B Jo i B2 st (B 2 F 15 (46)

External Internal 12-month or
creditrating credit rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
128 A EREH
SEBIEEEER ABERTR EHEE AR T 48 B
2021 2020
b bt N —T T
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
k3 BETT BT T
Financial assets BRBHEREIRZ
at amortised costs MBEE
Trade receivables B 5 YR IE 20 N/A Note 3 Lifetime ECL 30,039 38,740
i@ A B 5£3 FRMEREERE
N/A Loss Credit-impaired 4,667 5,072
@A ! AREERE
Loan receivables & W2 B 3R 20 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 21,720 24,636
@R LidEN 1R2EAEHEERE
Loss Credit-impaired 142,023 142,423
& 1B AEERE
Restricted bank deposits 3[R #l R 1777 3¢ 22 A3-Al N/A 12-month ECL 8,514 57,112
TiE A 128 AEBIEEER
B1-Baatl N/A 12-month ECL 7,596 6,970
T iE A 12 AFEESEERE
16,110 64,082
Short-term bank deposits 2 £ #8 1717 3 22 A3-A1 N/A 12-month ECL 251,181 425,668
TiE A 12EAAEHEEEE
Cash and cash equivalents # & RIR & EED 22 Aa3-Aai N/A 12-month ECL 54,827 92,581
i@ A 12@AEMEERESE
A3-At N/A 12-month ECL 449,743 509,045
i@ A 12 AFEESEERE
B1-Baat N/A 12-month ECL 380,788 180
i@ A 2@ EHEERE
885,358 601,806
Other receivables and H b WRIE RATE N/A Note 1 12-month ECL 20,570 36,466
deposits i A B 51 12EABHEEEE
Other items HiEE
Financial guarantee MBERALN 32 NA Low risk 12-month ECL 90,564 260,417
contracts (Note 2) (Ff 5£2) i@ A 1K 2 B 12EABHEEEE
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)
Notes:

1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management,
the Group uses past due information to assess
whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

39. I R(E)
0.2 MEEGEBEEHERBE (&)

(b)

15 & /ol K& R et 1B 5F 1 (4%)

GEE

—

RETABEERRER A
SEERBHANFHEER
REMEERAREEBEE
o e

Pastdue Not past due Total
B gl @zt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

EETR EWTR EETRT

Other receivables and deposits Hib kB kT &

As at 31 December 2021 RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—H — 20,570 20,570
As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZZHE+-_A=+—H — 36,466 36,466
2. For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying 2. R BEREOM S - RER
amount represents the maximum amount the Group BEASEIRBEEBEGOER
has guaranteed under the respective contracts. The ZEEeE BXWMEIATF
fair values of the purchasers’ properties are higher EERAEBRRITEL Z15E
than the Group’s guaranteed amount to the banks, ReE - A EER AV EER
and thus the Directors considered the loss given AHZENBBRERE M
default in the financial guarantee contracts is low and BEREHZ12EAEHREER
the 12-month ECL on financial guarantee contracts ERIETERX -
is insignificant.
3. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the 3. REFEBRIEMES - A5EE

simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group assessed the
ECL on trade receivables individually on each
debtor.

7B T 1R R AU H 0%
B2 L% R ERBES
BEERHBERER - A%
M 55 A 2 E SR
B2 RS T R
#HE -
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The estimated loss rate of each debtor is
estimated based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and
adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In the opinion of the Directors, the lifetime ECL on
trade receivables are considered insignificant.

The following table shows the movement in ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables
and loan receivables.

39. I R(E)
02 BRAKEEBBERBK(E)

(b) 15E/ERER K EFE (&)

BEBAZGFTEEXTIRIE
BEHAREFFHRAZBED
BRENREH A X E
FNHTBERERARKE WA
RS EERELFE -

E=RA HIRUREBEZRE
RMEMEEEREERYLT
BEX-

TRIRHE 5 R WA M
WERHRBREEEBIESE
) o

ECL (credit-impaired)
ERNENEERR(FEERE)
Loan receivables

B W & 3

Trade receivables

ESEKRE

2021 2020 2021 2020
—FT-—F Eebiablay "T"—F Eakiakco
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT AT T BETT AT T
As at the beginning of the W3R B 7))
reporting period 142,423 — 5,072 5,834
Changes due to financial R—A—B®R
instruments recognisedas BT T AMEH:
at 1 January:
— Impairment loss - BERRAZREEBE
recognised - - - 2,212%
— Impairment loss - BBEZREER
reversed (400) - (182) 2,712
— Write-offs — H 35 - - (223) (262)
New financial assets EENUBEE
originated - 142,423* - -
As at the end of the reporting 7 #7 & #A %
period 142,023 142,423 4,667 5,072
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

* Full impairment on the gross carrying amount was
recognised for respective credit-impaired trade
receivables and loan receivables.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or when the trade receivables are
over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier.
The Group has taken legal action against the
debtors to recover the amount due and none of
the trade receivables that have been written off is
subject to enforcement activities.

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to
liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade
payables, accrued expenses and other payables
and borrowings, and also in respect of its cash
flow management. The Group’s objective is to
ensure adequate funds to meet commitments
associated with its financial liabilities. Cash flows
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis. The
Group will raise funds from the realisation of its
assets if required. The Directors are satisfied that
the Group will be able to meet in full its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future.
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the remaining
contractual maturities at the reporting date of the
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay. Specifically, for term loans
which contain a repayment on demand clause
which can be exercised at the banks’ sole
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow
based on the earliest time band in which the entity
can be required to pay, that is if the lenders were
to invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effect.

39. I R(E)
302 MERAREEEERKE (&)

(c) HEEZEMEE)
TRFANAEB 2 HBRER
WE B RSO HFS
TRBEAENARFTRARSTE (B
ERAA ORI =% (AT EF
K)ERBEBRZERAXE
B2HBNF)RAEE A
SN2 RFASHE - LEE -
MEEHRRTEERSITE
ZBERBEEGRZEHER
ME ' ZOMBERHERAR
SIEL BRI RN BMERER
AR AN Z R FRMHE
BEZESRL -

31 December 2021
Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash flows
“¥-%tZR=t-8H
HYBRAR-AFRRERE

Weighted

average Total More than
interest contractual Within 1 year but
rate Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
% amount cashflow  ondemand ]

ik BHRFR
FHH % RekE —£RE 178
) REE a8 RERE BIENA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR ERETR ERETR ERETR
Trade payables EHEANE NATER 17,405 17,405 17,405 -
Accrued expenses and other payables EABRAREMERKE NATER 345,203 345,203 345,203 -
Rental deposits received Bheke NATER 156,653 156,653 70,378 86,275
Bank loans KITER 124 1,871,501 1,910,207 1,419,302 490,905
Financial quarantee contracts BBERAY N/AT & B - 90,564 90,564 =
Lease liabilties HEARR 3.93 29,428 30,778 14,612 16,166
2,420,190 2,550,810 1,957,464 593,346

335



336 SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T A B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 —FE=—#F+=-A =+ —HI FZE

39. Financial Instruments (Continued) 30. MBI R(E)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and 302 MFEEMEEBHERBE(E)
Policies (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) FEELEREE)

31 December 2020
Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash flows
ZEZREtZA=T-R
HBERIT-ATREERE

Weighted
average Total More than
interest contractual Within 1 year but
rate Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
% amount cash flow on demand 5 years

ik CHIESiE

THH=E Rene —FR —EN)E
% REE 2% REXE  BRFHA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Trade payables BHENTA NATEFR 11,219 11,219 11,219 -
Accrued expenses and other payables B ERAREMERTE NATEH 427964 427964 427964 -
Rental deposits received Bt ES NATEH 157,870 157,870 54,467 103,403
Bank loans FIEH 1.83 1,851,998 1,914,099 212,236 1,701,863
Financial guarantee contracts BBERAH NATE - 260,417 260,417 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 398 17,413 18,178 9,959 8,219

2,466,464 2,789,747 976,262 1,813,485
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table set out below summarises the maturity
analysis of the bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause amounting to HK$117,500,000 as
at 31 December 2020 based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements. There
is no bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause as at 31 December 2021. The amounts
include interest payments computed using
contractual rates. As a result, these amounts were
greater than the amounts disclosed in the “within 1
year or on demand” time band in the maturity
analysis shown above. Taking into account the
Group’s financial position, the Directors do not
consider that it is probable that the banks will
exercise its discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The Directors believe that such terms
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in their loan agreements.

39. I R(E)
0.2 MEEGEBEEHERBE (&)

(c)

HREELEE ()
TERBMANR=_FT=_ZTF+=A
=t HBESREREEKER
2 B 17 B 3 7% #117,500,0007T
REXmEEBEEEER
ER Z BB RS - RZF
——H+-A=+—BVERS
REREBEBRRZBITER -
RECHBRERANNERTE
ZHEMR - Bt 25 H
=R _E ST R B BB IR o AT R
[— F R 3 7 B K B | B ) 6 [
RAEEZSHE ERNAEEZ
MR EFERABRITTK
ARETTE AT B E KB i8
HeoEBEEHE ZEBHEX
BIEBERRETES AT ER
HEEE -

Maturity analysis — Bank loans subject to a repayment

on demand clause based on scheduled repayment dates

REBEEXDHELHZANERAT-HAREXRERKRRLZ

RITER
Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash flow on demand
BHRFH —ERE
REE ReRERE REKE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
ERTR BETT EETT
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZZF
+-A=+—-H 117,500 119,673 119,673
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30. MBI R(E)

39. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform

As listed in note 26, the Group’s HIBOR bank borrowings may
be subject to the interest rate benchmark reform. The Group is
closely monitoring the market and managing the transition to
new benchmark interest rates, including announcements made
by the relevant IBOR regulators.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index Average (“HONIA”)
has been identified as an alternative to HIBOR, there is no plan
to discontinue HIBOR. The multi-rate approach has been
adopted in Hong Kong, whereby HIBOR and HONIA will co-
exist.

Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform
The following are the key risks for the Group arising from the
transition:

Interest rate related risks

For contracts which have not been transitioned to the relevant
alternative benchmark rates and without detailed fallback
clauses, if the bilateral negotiations with the Group’s
counterparties are not successfully concluded before the
cessation of HIBOR, there are significant uncertainties with
regard to the interest rate that would apply. This gives rise to
additional interest rate risk that was not anticipated when the
contracts were entered into.

There are fundamental differences between IBORs and the
various alternative benchmark rates. IBORs are forward
looking term rates published for a period (e.g. 3 months) at the
beginning of that period and include an inter-bank credit
spread, whereas alternative benchmark rates are typically risk-
free overnight rates published at the end of the overnight
period with no embedded credit spread. These differences will
result in additional uncertainty regarding floating rate interest
payments.
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AN FE26FT5)  REBZEBERERE
RITERIBETHREENRSE - AEH
EENERTRRERHFEERN R BIE -
BREEERTREREEERBEMIELZ
N

EERMEFE

BEATRRFGREH(ETREFAE
BNELBKEERBTRERERENERSZ
ZME - BRELLBEFLEHREBRE
REWEE - EECKAZBMNXYFT
BB BEREREMETHERFES
wESEHRE-

P EEENBESL ZEMR
AEEREEBRELEZETERRMT

) 2 10 B8 L B

HERRBEERBERAEENRBREHF
MERGERZEH  WAEEFTBRER
BRIERMARNERNEEHF I TRETE
CRERZN RN FEEATEER -
BYHEFVAHNKAREEANEI

]
B
KER AR -

RITAEREESEEAEENZIEFER
AER - RITAXRFERNBERGBELR
i &9 78 B8 HA A (B an 3@ A) A B 14 2 28 A1
X BRERTEEEEEZ BREENX
—RARBERAEGREQMOERRR
BHME - TEHEEEREZ - ELEZREE
BUEB MR RBEINTREEN -



202148t

40. Reconciliation of Liabilities Relating to

S 5 4 A PR Ay

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
relating to financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes which represents net debt as presented in Note
41. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

A SO A B

FoE——fFf A=+ —HIFE

40. U FEE R Z BRI

TERFIAGEHERELTHERCAFEE
B BRASLIFRSED M F4HZ2
FIZHETS BEERDELEZAGBIBE
ZARRAKESRERERERADER
MERHTERZEGREZRERE -

Amount
due to
shareholders Lease liabilities Borrowings Total
EftRERIE HEARE BE @z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
As at 1 January 2020 RZE-_ZTF—Hf—H - 11,271 1,944,063 1,955,334
Cash flow, net BeRERE (56,662) (6,777) (128,482) (190,921)
Other non-cash changes: Hi R e 28
New leases entered HEHE - 11,451 - 11,451
Finance costs recognised EHERBMEKK - 468 36,417 36,385
Dividends declared EERRE 56,662 - - 56,662
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-ZF+-A=1+—H - 17,413 1,851,998 1,869,411
Cash flow, net HengRg (56,662) (11,314) (4,253) (72,229
Other non-cash changes: HEiRe#g:
New leases entered HERE - 22,471 - 22,471
Finance costs recognised BERBEAKA - 858 23,756 24,614
Dividends declared BEERRE 56,662 - - 56,662
As at 31 December 2021 RZZZ—5+-A=+-H - 29,428 1,871,501 1,900,929
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41.

Capital Risk Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the current year.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt to equity ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated
as the sum of the Group’s borrowings and lease liabilities less
cash and cash equivalents and other bank deposits as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital
is calculated as total equity, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain the
debt to equity ratio at a manageable level.
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AEEEAEE T R2ARAEARAEH
RBRLEZeN  NEBRERRIEHE
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BRAKRALAEEEERHEERE Z AN
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2021 2020
—¥-—% —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T IT BT
Borrowings BB 1,871,501 1,851,998
Lease liabilities HEAE 29,428 17,413
— Financial assets at FVTOCI —EBAFEFAHEMEE
WAZBEEE (28,605) —
— Financial assets at FVTPL — AT EFABZZTH
AE (2,815) (63,008)
— Restricted bank deposits — ZRHRITER (16,110) (64,082)
— Short-term bank deposits — FEHERITER (251,181) (425,668)
— Cash and cash equivalents —BekReEEYD (885,358) (601,806)
Net debt BER 716,860 714,847
Total equity i 19,541,700 20,386,981
Net debt to equity ratio FEAEHERIE 0.037:1 0.035:1
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42. Share-based Employee Compensation

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2011
Share Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting held on
19 May 2011 (the “2011 AGM”).

The principal terms of the 2011 Share Option Scheme are set
out as follows:

Purpose of the 2011 Share Option Scheme

The purpose of this scheme is to encourage the participants to
perform their best in achieving the goals of the Company and
at the same time allow the participants to enjoy the results of
the Company attained through their efforts and contributions.

Eligible Participants of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme

Eligible participants of the 2011 Share Option Scheme includes
(i) any full time employee and director (any existing or proposed
executive or non-executive directors) of the Group or any
member of the Group and any part-time employee with weekly
working hours of 10 hours or above of the Group; (ii) any
advisor, consultants or agent to the Group; any provider of
goods and/or services to the Group; or any other person who,
at the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may
contribute to the Group; and (iii) any trustee of any trust
(whether family or discretionary) whose beneficiaries or objects
include any employee or business association of the Group.

Total number of securities issuable

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the 2011
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company shall not exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the adoption date of the 2011 Share
Option Scheme provided that the share options lapsed will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating such 10% limit.

At the 2011 AGM, the said 10% limit of number of shares
available for issue was 25,091,413 shares.

42.
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42. Share-based Employee Compensation 2. LENBERZESHME)

(Continued)

Total number of securities issuable (Continued)
Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the Company may
obtain a fresh approval from its shareholder in general meeting
to refresh the above mentioned 10% limit. In such event, the
total number of shares in respect of which share options may
be granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of
such approval provided that share options previously granted
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised share options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating such 10% limit.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share option granted and yet to be
granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30%
(or such other higher percentages as may be allowed under
the Listing Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from
time to time.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the 2011 Share Option Scheme was
14,335,413 representing approximately 5.06% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

Maximum entitlement of each employee/
participant

Unless separately approved by the shareholders of the
Company at a general meeting with the particular Participant
(as defined in the 2011 Share Option Scheme) and his or her
associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) abstaining from
voting, the total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each Participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12
months period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue.
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42. Share-based Employee Compensation

(Continued)

Period to take up share options and minimum
period to hold before exercise

Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the period which the
shares must be taken up under a share option and the
minimum period, if any, for which a share option must be held
before it can be exercised are to be decided by the Directors
upon granting the relevant share options. Details of such
information (if any) relating to the outstanding share options are
set out below.

Amount payable to take up share options and time
to accept offer

Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, an offer for the granting
of share options shall be accepted within 21 days from the
offer date and by way of payment of consideration of HK$1.00.

Exercise price

Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the exercise price shall
be a price determined by the board of directors and shall be at
least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the offer date;

(i) a price being the average of the closing prices of the
shares as quoted in the Stock Exchange for the 5 trading

days immediately preceding the offer date; and

(i) the nominal value of the shares.
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42. Share-based Employee Compensation

(Continued)

Life of the share option scheme

The 2011 Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years from its
adoption date (i.e. 19 May 2011).

On 3 January 2013 (the “Grant Date”), 5,196,000 share options
(the “Share Options”) to subscribe for up to a total of 5,196,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company were
granted to certain eligible individuals, including executive
directors, under 2011 Share Option Scheme. The exercise
price of the Share Options is HK$15.76 per share and the
vesting schedule of the Share Options are as follows:

(@  50% of the options can be exercised at any time after first
anniversary of the Grant Date;

(b)  25% of the options can be exercised at any time after
second anniversary of the Grant Date; and

(0 The remaining 25% of the Options can be exercised at
any time after third anniversary of the Grant Date.

The fair value of the Share Options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2013 under 2011 Share Option Scheme
determined at the Grant Date using Trinomial Option Pricing
Model was HK$23,610,000.

All Share Options were lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2017.

42.
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